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Modaraba Information 
Modaraba Company 
Eman Management (Private) Limited 

Directors of Modaraba Company 

Mr. Chaudhry Jawaid Iqbal 
Chairman 
Non-Executive Director 

Mr.Teizoon Kisat 
Chief Executive 
Executive Director 

Mr. Waheed ur Rehman 
Independent Director 

Ms. Saba Ahmed Agrawalla 
Independent Director 

Mr. Nasim Ahmed 
Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Azhar Iqbal 
Non-Executive Director 

Audit Committee 

Mr. Waheed ur Rehman 
Chairman 

Mr. Chaudhry Jawaid Iqbal 
Member 

Mr. Nasim Ahmed 
Member 

Ms. Saba Ahmed Agrawalla 
Member 

Risk Management Committee 

Mr. Nasim Ahmed 
Chairman 

Mr. Waheed ur Rehman 
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Ms. Saba Ahmed Agrawalla 
Member 

Mr. Teizoon Kisat 
Member 

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 
(HR&R Committee) 

Ms. Saba Ahmed Agrawalla 
Chairperson 

Mr. Azhar Iqbal 
Member 

Mr. Teizoon Kisat 
Member 

Chief Financial Officer 
Ms. Effat Assad 

Company Secretary 
Mr. Muhammad Jamal Ahmedani 

Head of Internal Audit 
Mr. Muhammad Noman Adil 

Shariah Advisor 
Alhamd Shahriah Advisory Services (Pvt) Ltd. 

Auditors 
Yousuf Adil 
Chartered Accountants 

Legal Advisor 
Mr. M. Hashim Lodhi 

Bankers I Financial Institutions 
Bank lslami Pakistan 
MCB Islamic Bank Limited 
HBL Islamic Bank 
Bank of Khyber 
Meezan Bank Limited 
National Bank of Pakistan 
Askari Bank Limited 
Faysal Bank Limited 
First Habib Modaraba 

Registered Office 
Plot # 9, Sector 24 
Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi 
Phone: 021 - 111 - 676 - 676 

Registrar & Share Registration Office 
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 
CDC House, 99-B, Block B, SMCHS 
Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi 
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Vision: 
To become the outsourcing solution 
provider of choice in the markets 
we serve. 

Mission: 
A dynamic, diverse and growth oriented 
modaraba delivering competitive 
outsourcing solutions for our customers 
through a network of professionals 
ensuring rewards to our stakeholders 
while fulfilling our corporate social 
responsibilities. 
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Notice of Annual Review Meeting 

Notice is hereby given that the 7th Annual Review Meeting of certificate-holders of Orient Rental Modaraba will 
be held on October 25, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. at the registered office of the Modaraba on 4th Floor, Plot# 9, Sector 24, 
Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi and through video conferencing facility to review the performance of Modaraba 
for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

j - .. -D 
On~rd 
Muhammad Jamal Ahmedani 
Company Secretary 
Orient Rental Modaraba 
October 04, 2024 
Karachi 

Notes: 

1. Participation in the meeting: 

a) Physical attendance 
Certificate holders whose names appear in the register of certificate holders of the Modaraba atthe close 
of business on October 17,2024areentitledtoattendtheAnnual Review Meeting. 

i) In case of individuals, the certificate holder shall authenticate his identity by showing his I her original 
Computerized National Identity Card (uCNIC") or original passportatthetime ofattending the meeting. 

ii) In case of proxy representing individuals, the proxy shall authenticate his identity by showing his I her 
original CNIC. All proxy forms must be submitted at the registered office of the Modaraba at least 48 
hours before the ti me of meeting. 

iii) In case of corporate entities; Board of Directors resolution I Power of Attorney with specimen signature 
along with proxy form must be submitted at the registered office of the Modaraba at least 48 hours 
before the meeting. 

b) Participation through video conferencing facility 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (uSECPn) through its Circular no. 4 dated February 15, 
2021 , has directed listed companies to ensure the participation of certificate holders in General Meetings 
through electronic means asa regularfeature in addition to holding through physical means .. 

Accordingly, certificate holders interested in participating in the meeting through video conference are 
requested to register themselves by providing the following particulars at company. 
secretary@orientmoda ra ba.com at-least 48 hours prior to commencement of meeting. 
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Name of CNIC No. Folio/CDC Cell No. No.of Email 
certificate holder Account No. Shares held address 

Video conference link details and login credentials will be shared with the certificate holders who have 
provided all the requested information within thetime prescribed. 

2. Dividend Announcement 

The Board of Directors of the Modaraba Management Company has approved cash dividend of 12% (Rs.1.20 
per Modaraba Certificate ofRs. l 0/-each) forthefinancial year ended June 30, 2024. 

Certificate holders who have not yet submitted a copy of their valid CNIC or NTN are requested to 
immediately submit the same directly to the Modaraba's Share Registrar Mis. CDC Share Registrar Limited. In 
case of non-receipt of the copy of a valid CNIC or NTN, the Modaraba would be constrained under section 243 
(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 to with hold dividend of such certificate holders. 

3. Closure of Certificate Transfer Book: 

The Certificate Transfer Books of the Modaraba will be closed from October 18, 2024 to October 25, 2024 
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the Registrar of Orient Rental Modaraba i.e., 
Mis. CDC Share Registrar Limited at its Head office CDC House, 99-B, Block"B~ SMCHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, 
Karachi - 74400, Telephone No: 021-111-111-500, Fax No: 021-34326053 at the close of business on October 
17, 2024 will be considered as being in time for the purpose of entitlement to dividend and to attend the 
Annual Review Meeting. 

4. Availability of Audited Financial Statements on Modaraba's website: 

In terms of Section 223 (7) oftheCompaniesAct2017, the Annual ReportfortheyearendedJune30,2024will 
also be placed on Modaraba's website simultaneously with the dispatch of the same to the certificate 
holders. 

5. Deduction of withholding tax on the amount of Dividend 

The rate of deduction of income tax under section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from dividend 
payments, has been prescribed as follows: 

a) Rate of tax for person appearing in the Active Taxpayers' List: 15% 
b) Rate of tax for person not appearing in the Active Taxpayers' List: 30% 

In case a Folio/CDS Account is jointly held, each joint-holder will be treated separately as Active or Non­
Active. Tax of each joint-holder sha II be deducted on the gross dividend amount determined by bifurcating 
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the certificate holding of each joint-holder on equal proportions, except where certificate holding 
proportion of joint-holder(s) is pre-defined as per the records of our Share Registrar and thus tax rates are 
applied in line with respective proportions. Those certificate holders who are holding Folio/CDS jointly: are 
requested to notify (in writing) any change in their certificate holding proportions to our Share Registrar, or 
their Participants/CDC Investor Account Services so that their revised certificate holding proportions are 
updated in our records for dividend payouts, ifany. 

Certificate holders seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a 
reduced rate are requested to submit a valid tax certificate or necessary documentary evidence as the case 
may be to the Share Registrar. 

Certificate holders desiring non-deduction of zakat are also requested to submit a valid declaration for non­
deduction of zakat. 

6. Dividend Mandate 

As per Section 242oftheCompaniesAct,2017 (the "Act"), the payment of cash dividend bya listed company/ 
entity through electronic mode has now become mandatory. Therefore, all the certificate holders of Orient 
Rental Modaraba are hereby advised to provide dividend mandate of their respective banks in the "Dividend 
Mandate Form" available on Company's website. Certificate holders maintaining shareholding under Central 
Depository System (CDS) are advised to submit their bank mandate information directly to the relevant 
participant/ CDC Investor Account Service. In the absence of bank account details or in case of incomplete 
details, the Modaraba is required to withhold the payment of cash dividend of those shareholders who have 
not provided the same. For more information, you may contact our share registrar. 

7. Transmission of Annual Financial Statements through Email 

As per the directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP") vi de S.R.O. 787(1) 
2014 dated 08 September 2014, companies are allowed the circulation of Audited Financial Statements 
along with the Notice of Annual Review Meeting to their certificate-holders through e-mail. Certificate 
holders who wish to receive Modaraba's Annual Report via email in future are requested to fill the consent 
form (available at Modaraba's website) and return it to our share registrar. 

8. Unclaimed dividend 

An updated list for unclaimed dividends of the Modaraba is available on the Modaraba's website 
https://www.orientmodaraba.com/investors. Certificate-holders, who by any reason, could not claim their 
dividend, if any, are advised to contact our Share Registrar to collect/inquire about their unclaimed dividend, 
if any. Dividend which remained unclaimed for more than three years is required to be deposited with the 
Federal Government under section 244(2) oftheCompaniesAct,2017. 

9. ChangeofAddress 

The Certificate ho Ide rs a re advised to notify change in their addresses, if any, to the Sha re Registrar. 
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Key Financial Data 

2024 2023 2022 

Total Assets (Rs in Millions) 2,332 2,184 2,052 

Current Assets (Rs in Millions) 923 789 643 

Current Liabilities (Rs in Millions) 591 464 768 

Paid-up certificate capital (Rs in Millions) 750 750 750 

Reserves (Rs in Millions) 647 503 316 

Certificate holders' net equity (Rs in Millions) 1,397 1,253 1,066 

Gross profit (Rs in Millions) 578 489 439 

Net profit (Rs in Millions) 218 188 170 

Total Dividend (Rs in Millions) 90 75 

Return on Asset % 10 9 8 

Return on Equity % 16 16 16 

Debt I Equity Ratio Times 0.24 0.41 0.40 

Current Ratio Times 1.56 1.70 0.84 

Earnings per ceritificates - basic and diluted Rs. 2.91 2.50 2.27 

Cash dividend % 12.00 10.00 

Cash dividend per certificate Rs. 1.2 1.00 

Book value per certificate Rs. 18.62 16.71 14.21 
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Value Added Statement 

2024 2023 2022 
Rsin'OOO Rsin'OOO Rsin'OOO 

Value added 
Revenue from operations 2,414,423 123% 1,990,039 123% 1,901,776 123% 
Less: Operating expenses (509,987) (26%) (399,921) (25%) (375,090) (24%) 
Other income 56,659 3% 25,034 2% 14,294 1% 

1,961,095 100% 1,615,152 100% 1,540,980 100% 

Value allocated 
To Employees 

as remuneration 923,082 47% 786,377 48% 725,352 47% 

To Government 
Income tax, sales tax others 473,239 24% 329,007 20% 323,811 21% 

To providers of finance 
as profit on Diminishing Musharaka 119,448 6% 92,216 6% 65,399 4% 

To Modarib 
Modaraba Management Company fee 45,948 3% 33,163 2% 32,322 2% 

To Certificate holders' 
as profit on Modaraba Certificates 0% 75,000 5% 0% 

Retained in business 
as Depreciation including amortisation 181,007 9% 186,887 12% 223,962 15% 
as Reserves and Retained Earnings 218,371 11% 112,502 7% 170,133 11% 

11961i095 100% 11615,152 100% 1,540,980 100% 
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Balance Sheet Composition 

2024 2023 2022 
Rupees Rupees Rupees 

Non-current assets 1,408,997,068 1,395,467, 125 1,408,643,366 

Current assets 922,527,254 788,947,455 643,054,536 

Non-current liabilities 343,603,721 466,995,526 218,120,523 

Current liabilities 591,296,066 464, 165,396 767,825,269 

Equity 1,396,624,535 1,253,253,658 1,065,752, 110 

2024ASSETS 2023ASSETS 2022ASSETS 

• Non-current assets • Current assets • Non-current assets • Current assets • Non-current assets • Current assets 

2024 LIABILITIES 2023 LIABILITIES 

50% 
50% C 37% 

63% .... J 
• Non-current liabilities • Non-current liabilities • Non-current liabilities 

• Current liabilities • Current liabilities • Current liabilities 
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Vertical Analysis 
BALANCE SHEET 

ASSETS 
Non-currant assets 
Fixed assets 
Intangible assets 
Long term deposits 
Long term loan 

Currant assets 
Stores, spares and loose tools 
Accounts receivables 
Loans, advances and other receivable 
Tax refundable due from Government 
Cash and bank balances 

LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities 
Diminishing musharlka financing 
Lease liability 
Deferred tax liability 

Current Habllltles 
Current maturity of diminishing musharika financing 
Current maturity of lease liability 
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 
Unclaimed dividend 
Taxation 

FINANCED BY: 
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 
U napproprfated profit 
Statutory reserves 

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 

ljarah rentals - net 
Operation and maintenance Income - net 
Income on deposits with banks 
(Loss) I Gain on disposal of fixed assets 
Gross Revenue 

Operating expenses 
Leasehold improvement written-off 
Administrative expenses 
Marketing expenses 
Finance costs 
Exhange loss 
Impairment loss on financial assets 
Total Expenses 

Modaraba Management Company's fee 
Provision for Sindh Sales tax on Modaraba Management fee 
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 
Taxation 

Profit Margin 

2024 2023 2022 

~----
6

-~-E~ I El ~----
6

_!_E~ 
60% 64% 70% 

6% 
14% 
4% 
5% 

11% 
40% 

100% 

3% 
13% 
3% 
5% 

11% 
36% 

100% 

4% 
14% 
4% 
5% 
4% 

31% 
100% 

...._ _____ ~_E ..... l l...._ ____ 

1

_:..;..E ..... l ... I _____ ~_E ..... I 
15% 

5% 
1% 

19% 
0% 
0% 

25% 

11% 11% 

8% 
0% 

13% 
0% 

1% 
22% 

13% 
1% 

23% 
0% 
1% 

38% 

...._ ___ ---"!-~_E ..... l ... I _____ ~_L_: ..... l ... I _____ 
3

_~..;..E ..... I 
------"6..;;.0..;..%;;... 57% 52% 

=======1=0=0=%= 100% 100% 

58%~ 64% 

...._ ____ 

4

..;;.~..;..E~~...._ ____ ~..;;.~..;..E~ 
100% 100% 100% 

71% 
0% 
3% 
0% 
5% 
0% 
0% 

79% 

2% 
0% 
0% 
7% 

12% 

74% 
0% 

3% 
0% 
4% 
0% 

1% 
82% 

2% 
0% 
0% 

6% 

10% 

76% 
0% 
4% 
0% 
4% 
0% 
0% 

84% 

2% 
0% 
0% 
2% 

12% 
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Horizontal Analysis 
BALANCE SHEET 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Fixed assets 
Intangible assets 
Long term deposits 
Long-term loan 

Current assets 
Stores, spares and loose tools 
Accounts receivables 
Loans, advances and other receivable 
Tax refundable due from Government 
Cash and bank balances 

LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities 
Diminishing musharlka financing 
Lease liability 
Deferred tax liability 

Current llabllltles 
Current maturity of diminishing musharika financing 
Current maturity of lease liability 
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 
Unclaimed dividend 
Taxation 

FINANCED BY: 
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 
Unappropriated profit 
Statutory reserves 

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 

ljarah rentals - net 
Operation and maintenance income - net 
Income on deposits with banks 
(Loss) I Garn on disposal of fixed assets 
Gross Revenue 

Operating expenses 
Leasehold improvement written-off 
Administrative expenses 
Marketing expenses 
Finance costs 
Impairment loss on financial assets 
Total Expenses 

Modaraba Management Company's fee 
Provision for Sindh Sales tax on Modaraba Management fee 
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 

Profit Margin 

2024 

0% D 
1% 

107% 
18% 
-3% 
0% 
4% 

17% 

7% 

-37% 
-11% 
15% 

-26% 

-27% 

61% 
59% 

107% 
100% 
27% 

2023 

-1% 
-100% 

7% 
0% 

-1% 

-14% 
0% 

-13% 
-5% 

231% 
23% 

6% 

101% 
5802% 

13% 
114% 

-33% 
-29% 
-43% 

-1% 
100% 
-40% 

2022 

-3% 
-88% 

0% 
0% 

-3% 

21% 
33% 
50% 

0% 
-55% 

4% 
-1% 

-61% 
100% 

79% 
-52% 

-9% 
1154% 

31% 
-38% 
100% 

17% 

...._ ____ ~_r_: ..... 11 .... ----~-:_E ..... 11 .... ----~-~-E ..... 1 
____ ___;;,1...;;.1..;..%;;... 18% 10% 

============7=%= 6% -1% 

16% 
27% 

104% 
2256% 

22% 

21% 
0% 

6% 
324% 

30% 
100% 

18% 

39% 
39% 
39% 

16% 

-1% 
14% 

256% 
102% 

5% 

2% 
0% 

0% 
-88% 
41% 

-83% 
5% 

3% 
3% 
3% 

10% 

27% 
21% 
48% 

144% 
26% 

24% 
0% 

-2% 
29% 

4% 
383% 

20% 

52% 
52% 
52% 

9% 
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Chairman's Review Report 

Dear Modaraba Certificate Holders, 

I am pleased to present an overview of Orient Rental Modaraba's performance during year ended June 30, 2024. Pakistan's 
GDP recorded growth of 2.4%, a significant improvement from last year's contraction of0.21 %. Agriculture emerged as the 
key driver of this growth, expanding by 6.25% while the industrial and service sectors recorded a growth rate of 1.21 %. 
Growth of 3.6 % is projected in the current fiscal year 2024-25 on the implementation of economic reforms and increased 
agriculture output. The approval of the IMF Executive Board of Extended Fund Facility equivalent of US$ 7 billion will 
strengthen microeconomic stability and create conditions for stronger growth. 

The Modaraba achieved a commendable revenue growth of 20% during the year amid the moderate recovery of 
economic activities. The Profit before levies and taxation at Rs. 399 million is 38% higher compared to last year. After-tax 
profit reported at Rs. 218 million was higher by 16% compared to last year. The Modaraba is subject to withholding tax 
deduction @9% on payments made by the customers for rental of generators. The withholding tax in excess of normal tax 
liability is charged to the profit and loss account as "Levies" because it is a minimum tax. Due to the charge of Levies of Rs. 
34.5 million and recently imposed super tax, the tax incidence on the Modaraba calculates to45% which is on a very high 
side. A reduced tax rate of 4% for services provided by Modaraba would contribute to the sector's growth, its financial 
viability and increased return to the shareholders. 

Based on the resu Its for 2024 and the financial position of the Company, the Boa rd ofDi rectors p reposes a dividend ofRs 1.2 
per certificate, which is an increase of2% per certificate compared to the dividend for 2023. 

On the positive side, the recent reduction in policy rate by 200 basis points to 17.5%, by State Bank of Pakistan will not only 
help in reducing finance cost but will support expansion of existing assets portfolio that would strengthen its position in 
the existing business segments. The Board ofDirectors during the year approved the a mend men ts in the prospectus of the 
Modaraba. The Registrar Modaraba has approved the amendments. As we strengthen our position in our core business 
segment, we look forward to exp lore new business opportunities for further business expansion. The Board reaffirms their 
commitment to strengthening returns forthe stakeholders of the Modaraba. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I offer a sincere thank you to the Chief Executive Officer and every employee in the 
Modaraba for their contributions in the past year. They have once again, with their commitment and dedicated efforts, 
steered the Modaraba through another successful year despite many challenges. 

I also extend my appreciation to the Registrar Modaraba, the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the 
Pakistan Stock Exchange for their cooperation, support, and guidance from time to ti me. 

I wou Id al so I ike to taketh is opportunity to express mys i nee re gratitude to al I our al I our stakeholders, in duding customers, 
suppliers, certificate-holders, bankers, and other partners. Your unwavering support and loyalty have been fundamental to 
our success, and wedeeplyappreciateyourcontinued commitment.Thankyou for being an essential partofour journey. 

Dated: September 20, 2024 
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Directors' Report 

The Board of Directors of EMAN Management (Pvt.) Limited (uEMAN"), the Management Company of Orient 
Rental Modaraba ("Modaraba") is pleased to present the Financial Statements of the Modaraba for the year 
ended June 30, 2024. 

Financial Highlights June2024 June2023 
Ruoees Ruoees 

Revenue 2, 122,222,950 1,761,802,240 
Operating Expenses (1,544,446,464) (1,273, 175,946) 
Gross Profit 577,776,486 488,626,294 
Administrative and Marketing Expenses (55,271,212) (51,944, 798) 
Other Expenses (233,000) (14,945,050) 
Other Income 56,658,691 25,034,297 
Finanace cost {119,448,309) (92,216,076) 
Impairment loss on Financial Assets - (22,926,402) 
Profit before Manaqement Fee 459,482,656 331,628,265 
Modaraba Management Company's Fee (45,948,266) (33, 162,827) 
Provision for Sales Tax on Management Fee (5,973,275) (4,311,168) 
Provision for Sindh Workers Welfare Fund (8, 151,222) (5,883,085) 
Profit before Levies and Taxation 399,409,893 288,271, 185 
Revenue Taxes (34,527,755) (1,909,499) 
Profit before taxation 364,882, 138 286,361,686 
Taxation {146,511,261) (98,860, 138) 
Profit after taxation 218,370,877 187,501,548 
Un-appropriated profit brought forward 303,494,578 153,493,340 
Transfer to Statutory Reserve@ 20% of profit for the year (43,674, 175) (3 7,500,310) 
Profit distribution for the year ended June 30, 2023, Re. 1.0 (for the year ended 
June 30, 2022: Nil) per Certificate (75,000,000) -

Un-appropriated profit carried forward 403,191,280 303,494,578 
Earnings per certificate - Basic and Diluted 2.91 2.50 
Break up value per certificate 18.62 16.71 

Economic Review 

According to Pakistan's economic survey, the Country's GDP grew by only 2.4% in the fiscal year 2023-24, failing to 
meet the 3.5% target set by the Government. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has forecasted that 
Pakistan's economy will grow by 3.5% in the fiscal year 2024-25. This projection falls slightly below the 
Government's target of 3.6%, which was announced in the latest budget, and comes amidst a backdrop of 
sluggish global economic activity. 

Pakistan's real, fiscal, and external sectors show signs of fragility. Fiscal consolidation efforts have aimed at 
stabilizing the economy, but GDP growth remains modest, and inflationary pressures continue, straining 
businesses and households. While a positive primary balance is encouraging, it has yet to translate into a full 
economic recovery. 
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Agriculture has offered some relief, supported by government measures to improve credit access and inputs. 
However, the sector's growth is limited by supply chain disruptions and environmental challenges. The Large­
Scale Manufacturing sector has seen a slight contraction, but this marks an improvement from last year's decline. 
Efforts to balance the budget through increased tax and non-tax revenues have been made, but the growing 
fiscal deficit remains a major concern. 

Finance bill 2024 focused on the old and tested approach of collecting more taxes from taxpayers already in the 
tax net. The Government has imposed a higher income tax rate of up to 35 percent on the salaried class, which is 
the most documented sector of the economy with no chances of tax evasion due to tax deduction at source. 
Even the lower income category with monthly salary ofRs. 100,000 has been hit with higher taxes due to changes 
in tax slabs without considering the economic realities faced by many salaried individuals. The Government 
needs to consider alternative measures to raise revenue and provide tax relief to salaried individuals to offset the 
increased burden. 

Externally, the current account balance shows marginal gains, driven by a narrowing trade deficit and modest 
foreign investment. Yet, the external sector remains vulnerable to global commodity price fluctuations, rupee 
devaluation, and limited reserves. 

The recent step by the State Bank of Pakistan in reducing the policy rate by 200 bps to 17.5 %, effective from 
September 13, 2024 is constructive move aimed at revitalizing the economy. By lowering the policy rate, it is 
expected to decrease the overall cost of doing business, encouraging businesses to expand operations. 

The overall economic outlook is mixed. While there are positive signals, significant risks persist. Future stability will 
depend on comprehensive reforms to bolster long-term growth. However, businesses and consumers are likely 
to face ongoing challenges from global economic disruptions and currency depreciation, leading to higher 
operational costs and reduced purchasing power. 

Review of Operations 

Modaraba's profit before tax at Rs. 399.41 million was higher by 38.5% compared to the June 2023 profit of Rs. 
288.27 million. 

Gross revenues at Rs. 2,122.22 million were higher by 20.4% (June 2023: Rs. 1,761.80 million). All business 
segments of the Modaraba contributed to this increase. The operating and maintenance category, which 
increased its contribution by 27 .1 % over the previous year, was the primary driver of th is growth. 

Operating expenses at Rs. 1,544.45 million were higher by 21.3% against Rs. 1,273.17 million recorded in the 
previous year. Higher maintenance expenses were the outcome of an improved generator deployment. 
Furthermore, the increase was also caused by an increase in the cost of the parts used for maintenance. Annual 
salaries increase, government's minimum wage regulations and the effects of inflation resulted in an 18% 
increase in salaries over the previous year. 
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Administrative costs were kept under control and increased by 6.4% despite inflation. Last year other expenses 
included an exchange loss of Rs. 14.9 million due to a delay in payment arising from restrictions on import 
payments. 

Other income increased mainly due to the return on substantial placement with banks and gain on disposal of 
assets. 

Modaraba moved its generator yard to a new location in May 2023. As a result, the finance cost for the lease 
liabilityforthe currentyearwas Rs. 17.4 million compared to Rs. 3.7 million in the previous year. On the other hand, 
the finance cost of diminishing musharaka increased from Rs. 88.3 million in June 2023 to Rs. 101.8 million in the 
current year. A reduction in payback of Rs. 170.4 million partially offset a full-year charge in the current year on 
financing acquired in the second halfof the previous year. 

No impairment loss on financial assets was made as additional provision was not required for doubtful debts. 

The total taxes forthe year amounted to Rs. 181.0 million (June 2023: Rs. 100.8 million). The substantial increase in 
the income for the year resulted in the charge of super tax @6% as opposed to 3% in the previous year. Further, 
withholding tax on rendering of services under section 153 was charged as minimum tax which was 30% above 
the normal corporate tax. Consequently, the profit after tax forthe year stands at Rs. 218.4 million, compared to Rs. 
187.50 million in the previous year. 

Earnings per certificate increased from Rs. 2.50 lastyearto Rs. 2.91 in the current year. 

Profit Distribution 

The Board is pleased to announce a cash dividend of 12% i.e. Rs. 1.2/- per certificate of Rs. 10/- each, subject to 
deduction of za kat and tax at source, where applicable. 

Sustainability Strategy 

Pakistan ranked #150 on the climate vulnerability index and the urgency for climate change is clear. In October 
2021, Pakistan submitted its Nationally Determined Contribution (NDC) to the United Nations, outlining the 
country'stargettoshiftto60% renewable energy and reduce emissions by 50% by2030. 

We are committed to supporting Pakistan's sustainability goals and fulfilling our social responsibility. Our 
corporate objectives include investing in renewable energy projects and incorporating energy efficient 
practices. To inculcate this feeling of shared responsibility in our employees, the company distributed plants on 
the occasion of Pakistan's 78th Independence Day. Thereby, promising a greener and more sustainable future for 
our country. 

Principal Risks and Uncertainties 

The Modaraba is exposed to certain inherent risks and uncertainties. However, we consider the following as key 
risks: 
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• Business Risk 
Due to significant reliance on the generator rental business, the Modaraba is facing a risk from disruption 
of gas supplies to the industry and a rise in the cost of new generators mainly due to a significant increase 
in the exchange rate. The currency market has been extremely volatile, resulting in the depreciation of 
the Pakistani Rupee against a basket of major currencies. The currently prevalent market rates of 
generator rent do not offer an adequate return on investment in new generators. Therefore, the 
management of Madara ba wi II remain prudent and cautious in its investment strategy. 

• CreditRisk 
Modaraba is exposed to inherent default risks in the business of ljarah. The Modaraba is carrying risks in 
terms of default in rental payments by the customer and other risks such as non-possession of owned 
assets, misuse or abuse by the customer, accidents, theft, and breakdown. The assets have been 
deployed at different industrial sectors throughout the Country to minimize the concentration and 
default risks. 

• Economic Risk 
Pakistan faces considerable challenges to its political and macro-economic stability, particularly fiscal 
and external account deficits. The performance of Modaraba can be affected by changes in the 
economic conditions. Factors such as market growth, interest rates, and exchange rates could affect the 
earnings and assets of Modaraba. 

• Liquidity Risk 
The main source of funding of Modaraba is Diminishing Musharaka. Its exposure to interest risk is limited, 
given its musharaka financing is at 1 year I 3 months KIBOR + 1.5 - 2.15 % per annum. The financial 
strength of the Modaraba is adequate considering the support provided by the associated company for 
managing its funding and going forward Modaraba intends to keep its leveraging at a manageable level. 

The Modaraba works with internal and external stakeholders to mitigate/reduce to an acceptable level the likely 
impacts of aforesaid risks. 

Future Outlook 

Pakistan's economy faces uncertain times ahead. High inflation, political uncertainties and fiscal challenges will 
continue to put pressure on growth. While agriculture may support some recovery, manufacturing could face 
setbacks due to energy shortages and global supply chain issues. The external sector remains vulnerable to 
fluctuating global prices and low foreign reserves. Sustained reforms in taxation, governance, and energy are 
crucial for stability. 

The Board of Directors 

The Board com prises of 6 di rectors. 

Male Directors 
Female Directors 

5 
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The composition of the Board members is as under: 

Independent Directors 2 
Non-Executive Directors 3 
Executive Director 

During the year, a total of five meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The position of attendance during 
respective period was as follows: 

Name Meetings attended 
Mr. Chaudhry Jawaid Iqbal 
Mr. Nasim Ahmed 
Mr. Azhar Iqbal 

Mr. Joozer Jiwakhan* 
Ms. Saba Ahmed Agrawal la 

Mr. Waheed ur Rehman** 
Mr. Teizoon Kisat 

* Retired on January 1, 2024, on completion of the Board's term. 
** Elected on January l, 2024. 

Board Audit Committee 

5 
5 
5 

2 

4 

3 

5 

The Board of Directors has established an Audit Committee, in compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, which oversees internal controls and compliance and has been 
working efficiently since its inception. The Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly, half-yearly, and annual 
financial statements before submission to the Board and their publication. The Audit Committee had detailed 
discussions with the external auditors on various issues, including their letter to the management. The Audit 
Committee also reviewed internal auditors' findings and held separate meetings with internal and external 
auditors as required under the Code of Corporate Governance. 

A total of four meetings of the Board Audit Committee were held. The position of attendance during respective 
tenure was as follows: 

Name Meetings attended 
Mr. Joozer Jiwakhan* 2 
Mr. Waheed ur Rehman** 2 
Mr. Nasim Ahmed 4 

Mr. Chaudhary Jawaid Iqbal 4 

Ms. Saba Ahmed Agrawal la 3 

* Retired on January 1, 2024, on completion of the Board's term. 
** Appointed as a member on January 1, 2024. 
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Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 

The Board of Directors in compliance with the Regulations formed Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee (HRRC). The HRRC is primarily responsible for the implementation ofthe process of evaluation and 
compensation of the key management personnel. 

One meeting was held duringtheyear.Theposition ofattendance is as follows. 

Name Meetings attended 
Mr. Joozer Jiwakhan* 
Mr. Nasim Ahmed* 

Ms. Saba Ahmed Agrawal la** 
Mr. Azhar Iqbal** 
Mr. Teizoon Kisat 

* Retired on January 1, 2024, on completion of the Board's term. 
** Appointed as a member on January 1, 2024. 

Risk Management Committee 

1 

1 
-

-

1 

The Board of Directors in compliance with the Regulations formed Risk Management Committee. The Risk 
Committee is primarily responsible for setting up risk appetite and designing and implementing appropriate risk 
management and internal control systems that identify the risks facing the Modaraba and enable the Board to 
makea robust assessment of the principal risks. 

Two meetings was held during the year.The position of attendance is as follows. 

Name Meetings attended 
Mr. Chaudhary Jawaid Iqbal* 1 

Mr. Nasim Ahmed** 1 

Ms. Saba Ahmed Agrawal la 2 
Mr. Waheed ur Rehman** 1 

Mr. Teizoon Kisat 2 

* Retired on January 1, 2024, on completion of the Board's term. 
** Appointed as a member on January 1, 2024. 
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Board Changes 

On January 1, 2024, the Board completed its term and election of Directors was held.The newly elected Board is as 
follows: 

Name 
Mr. Chaudhry Jawaid Iqbal Non-Executive Director I Chairman 
Mr. Nasim Ahmed Non-Executive Director 
Mr. Azhar Iqbal Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Waheed ur Rehman Non-Executive Independent Director 
Ms. Saba Ahmed Agrawalla Non-Executive Independent Director 

Mr. Teizoon Kisat Executive Director 

The Board of Directors places on record its appreciation and gratitude for the services rendered by the retired 
Director Mr.Joozer Jiwakhan. 

Compliance with Corporate Governance 

The Board of Directors reviews all significant matters of the Modaraba. These include Modaraba's strategic 
direction, related party transactions, and decisions on long-term investments and borrowings. The Board is 
committed to maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance. 

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework 

• Financial Statements of the Modaraba fairly present its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows 
and changes in equity. 

• Proper books of accountsoftheModaraba have been maintained. 

• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements 
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. 

• International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable to Modarabas in Pakistan, have been followed in 
the preparation of financial statements. 

• The system of internal control, which is in place, is being continuously reviewed by internal audit.The process 
of review wi II continue and any weakness in controls wil I be removed. 

• There is no reason todoubtthe Modaraba's abilitytocontinue asa going concern. 

• Asummaryofkeyoperating and financial dataforthe period under review is included in this annual report. 
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• There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies, and charges that are outstanding as of 
June 30, 2024 except for those disclosed in the financial statements. 

• The Modaraba maintains a Provident Fund for its permanent employees. The value of investments based on 
the unaudited financial statements of the fund as of June 30, 2024, is Rs. 226, 113,760 (June 30, 2023: Rs. 
150,764,967) 

Credit Rating 

The Modaraba maintained its long term rating of A- and short-term rating of A2. The rating was assigned by The 
Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited. 

Place of Board Meeting 

During the period, all board meetings were arranged at Karachi in Management Company's office and none of 
the meetings were conducted outside Pakistan in order to avoid any extra expenses ofoutside meeting. 

Pattern of Certificate Holders 

A Statement showing pattern of Certificate Holding of the Modaraba and additional information as at June 30, 
2024 is included in this report along with the proxyform. 

DirectorsTraining Program 

Four out of six Directors have certifications under the Directors Training Program that meet the requirement of 
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. 

Related PartyTransactions 

In accordance with the requirements of the Regulations, the Company presented all related party transactions 
before the Audit Committee and the Boa rd for their review and a pprova I, respectively. 

Internal Financial Controls 

Thedirectorsareawareoftheir responsibility with respect to internal financial controls.Through discussions with 
management and auditors (both internal and external), they confirm that adequate controls have been 
implemented bytheCompany. 

Subsequent Events 

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred between 
the end of the financial year and the date of this report. 
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Remuneration Policy of Non-Executive Directors 

The fee of the Non-Executive and Independent Directors for attending the Board and Committee meetings of the 
Company is determined by the Board from time to time. 

Shari'ah Audit Report 

The Modaraba continues to seek guidance from its Shari'ah Advisor, Alhamd Shariah Advisory Services, as and 
when required. The internal audit department has also been trained to handle the day-to-day affairs of the 
Modaraba ensuring complete adherence to Shari'ah policies and principles. The Shari'ah Audit Report issued for 
the affairs of the Modaraba forthe period ended June 30, 2024, is attached to the Annual Financial Statements. 

Auditors 

On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board has approved the appointment of Mis. Yousuf Adil, 
Chartered Accountants as auditors for the year ending June 30, 2025, subject to the approval of Registrar of 
Modaraba Companies & Modarabas. 

Acknowledgement 

The Board wishes to place on record its sincere appreciation to the Registrar Modaraba, the Securities & Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan, and Pakistan Stock Exchange for their cooperation, support, and guidance from time to 
time. 

The Board also places on record its sincere gratitude to the certificate holders who have remained committed to 
the Orient Group and the employees of the Modaraba for their contribution and efforts to meet customers' 
expectations by providing quality service, ensuring continued business for the Modaraba. 

==t 2-nliuAA[-
Chief Executive Officer 

September 20, 2024 
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Annual Shariah Advisor's Report 
For the year ended June 30, 2024 

We have conducted the Shariah review of Orient Rental Modaraba managed by Eman Management 
(Pvt.) Limited for the financial year ended on June 30, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of 
Shariah Compliance and Shariah Audit Mechanism for Modarabas and report that as: 

In Our Opinion 

i. The Modaraba has introduced a mechanism that strengthened the Shariah compliance, in 
letter and spirit and the systems, procedures, and policies adopted by the Modaraba are in 
line with Shariah principles. 

ii. Major developments during the year include: 

a. ORM's basic products are Operating Lease, Operation & Maintenance, and Facility 
Management - are Shariah-compliant services. 

b. Training on Islamic Finance concepts, specifically ljarah, was conducted for the 
relevant ORM staff last year and will be repeated if necessary. 

iii. The agreements entered into by the Modaraba are Shariah compliant and the Leasing 
agreements have been executed on the formats as approved by the Shariah advisor and all 
the related conditions have been met. 

iv. To the best of our information and according to the explanations gives to us, the business 
transactions undertaken by the Modaraba and all other matters incidental thereto are in 
conformity with the Shariah requirements as well as the requirements of the Prospectus, 
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan and the Shariah Compliance 
and Shariah Audit Regulations for Modarabas. 

v. No earnings have been realized from sources prohibited by Shari ah. 

Conclusion: 

Based on thorough reviews of operating lease and maintenance contract samples, along with 
associated documentation and processes, we confidently assert that the activities, transactions, 
and affairs performed by ORM during this fiscal year are compliant with Shari ah rules and principles. 
This compliance is in line with the guidelines issued by the Registrar Modaraba, Securities & 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan. 

Mufti Muhammad Ibrahim Essa 
CEO & Director 
Dated: 30th August 2024 

Mufti Ubaid ur Rahman Zubairi 
Director 

Address: Flat 503, 3th Floor Ibrahim Residency, C.P & Berar Society, Karachi. 
tr +92 322 2671867 I !;!. www.alhamdshariahadvisory.com I C8J info@alhamdshariahadvisory.com 
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 
For the year ended June 30, 2024 

This statement is being presented to com ply with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019, for establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed Modaraba is 
managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance. EMAN Management (Private) Limited 
(the Modaraba Management Company) is not listed. However, Orient Rental Modaraba (the Modaraba) is listed at 
the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Board of Directors of the Modaraba Management Company is responsible for 
managing the affairs of the Modaraba. 

The Modaraba has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019 in the following manner: 

1. The total number of directors a re six comprising of: 
a) Male Five 
b) Female One 

2. The composition of the Board is as follows: 

Category Names 

a) Independent Director Mr.Waheed urRehman 
Independent Female Director Ms.Saba Ahmed Agrawalla 

b) Non-executive Directors Mr. Chaudhry Jawaid Iqbal 
Mr. Nasim Ahmed 
Mr.Azharlqbal 

c) Executive Director Mr.Teizoon Kisat 

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, 
including this Modaraba; 

4. The Modaraba has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminated itthroughoutthe Modaraba along with its supporting policies and procedures; 

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of 
the Modaraba. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along 
with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Modaraba; 
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6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by 
the Board is empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations; 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by 
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with 
respecttofrequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board; 

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for the remuneration of the directors in 
accordance with the Act and these Regulations; 

9. Four directors have obtained certification under the Directors Training Program as required. Further, 
adequate measures will be taken forthe Directors'Training Program for remaining two Directors. 

10. The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and the Head of 
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with 
relevant requirements of the regulations; 

11. ChiefFinancial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of 
the Board; 

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 

a) AuditCommittee: 

Chairman Mr. Waheed ur Rehman 
Members Mr. Chaudhry Jawaid Iqbal 

Mr. Nasim Ahmed 
Ms. Saba Ahmed Agrawalla 

b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee: 

Chairperson Ms. Saba Ahmed Agrawalla 
Members Mr. Azhar Iqbal 

Mr. Teizoon Kisat 

c) RiskManagementCommittee: 

Chairman Mr. Nasim Ahmed 
Members Ms. Saba Ahmed Agrawalla 

Mr. Waheed ur Rehman 
Mr. Teizoon Kisat 
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13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 
committee for compliance. 

14. The frequencies of the meetings of the committees were as follows; 

Committee No. of meetings 
Audit Committee 4 
Risk Management Committee: 2 
Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 1 

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function comprising of suitably qualified and experienced 
staff who are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Modaraba; 

16. The statutory auditors of the Modaraba have confirmed thatthey have been given a satisfactory rating under 
the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with 
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit a re not a close relative 
(Spouses, parents, dependents and non-dependents children) of the Chief Executive officer, Chief Financial 
Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or directors of the Madara ba Management Company; 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the 
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard; 

18. We confirm that all requirements of Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been 
complied with; and 

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are 
below: 
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S.NO Requirements Expalaination Reg No 

1 Anti Harassment Policy 

To have such policy to safeguard the On June 12, 2024, the SECP has 
rights and well being of employees amended the regulations, and added 10.4 
as per the relevant laws. these requirements. Board will assess (xvi) 

the required and will make policies in 
due course oftime. 

2 Sustainability Risks and 
Opportunities 

The Board has been made On June 12, 2024, the SECP has 
responsible to consider Sustainability amended the regulations, and added 
Risks and Opportunities and make these requirements. Board will assess 
policies to promote diversity, equity the required and will make policies in lOA 
and inclusion (DE&I) and make due course oftime. 
strategies, priorities and targets. Also 
board is required to periodically 
review and monitor and disclose the 
assessment of risks and disclose 
measures taken. 

3 Directors Training Program 

It is encouraged that all directors on Arrangements will be made to 
the Board have acquired the ensure certification of two directors 
prescribed certification under any in the current year. 19.1 
DirectorTraining Program (DTP) 
offered by the institutions, local or 
foreign. Two out of six directors have 
not attended DTP. 

4 Training offemale executive and 
Head of department 

It is encouraged to have Directors' Training of the head of department is 
19.3 Training program for female not a mandatory requirement. It may 

executives and one head of be considered if needed. 
department every year starting from 
July 2020 and July 2022 respectively. 
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S.NO Requirements Expalaination Reg No 

5 Nomination Committee 

The Board may constitute a separate A separate Nomination Committee is 
committee, designated as the not constituted as the functions of 
nomination committee, of such the nomination committee are being 29(1) 

number and class of directors, as it addressed at the Board level. 
may deem appropriate in its 
ci rcu msta nces. 

6 Posting key elements of its 
significant policies on it's website 

35.1, 
Regulations require to post certain Since the posting of major policies 35.3 & 
policies on the website of the on the website is voluntary, future 35.4 
Modaraba. developments may consider this 

requirement's compliance if needed. 

==f 1-HL/uAl[-
Chief Executive Officer 

September 20, 2024 
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YOUSUF ADIL 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT 

To the certificate holders of Orient Rental Modaraba 

Yousuf Adil 
Chartered Accountants 

Cavish Court, A-35, Block 7 & 8 
KCHSU, Shahrah-e- Faisal 
Karachi· 75350 
Pakistan 

Tel: +92 (0) 21 3454 6494· 7 
Fax +92 (0) 21 · 3454 131 4 
www.yousuf ad ii.corn 

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019 

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019 {the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of EMAN Management (Private) Limited (the 
Modaraba Management Company) for and on behalf of Orient Rental Modaraba {the Modaraba) for the year ended 
June 30, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Modaraba Management 
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Modaraba's 
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with 
the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Modaraba's and Modaraba 
Management Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Modaraba Management 
Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and 
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to 
consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion 
on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Modaraba Management Company's corporate governance 
procedures and risks. 

The Regulations require the Modaraba Management Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related 
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance with this requirement to the extent of the 
approval of the related party transact ions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance 
does not appropriately reflect the Modaraba Management Company's compliance, for and on behalf of the Modaraba, 
in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Modaraba for the year 
ended June 30, 2024. 

~ AzL:.l Ch~tants _.. 

Place: Karachi 
Date: September 27, 2024 
UDIN: CR202410186nlaWc35ZV 
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YOUSUF ADIL 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Yousuf Adil 
Chartered Accountants 

Cav1sh Court, A-35, Block 7 & 8 
KCHSU, Shahrah-e-Faisal 
Karach i 75350 
Pakiston 

Tel: +92 (0) 21 3454 6494-7 
lax +92 (0) 21- 3 4 54 1 3 14 
www yousufadil com 

TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS OF ORIENT RENTAL MODARABA 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of ORIENT RENTAL MODARABA (the Modaraba), which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024, and the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information, and we state that we 
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for 
the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of 
financial position, statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity 
and cash flow statement together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba 
(Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair 
view of the state of the Modaraba's affairs as at June 30, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Modaraba and Modaraba Company (EMAN 
Management Company (Private) Limited) in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the 
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Fo llowing is the Key audit matter: 

S. No Key audit matter 

1. Revenue Recognition 

As disclosed in the note 5.11.1 to the financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2024, 
revenue from ijarah rentals is recognized on an 
accrual basis, as and when rentals become 
due on a systematic basis over the ljarah 
period Le. when performance obligation is 
satisfied and are billed on a monthly basis. 

How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Our audit procedures in respect of this area includes 
the following: 

. Obtained an understanding of the Modaraba's 
process with respect to revenue recognition of 
ijrah rentals and tested design and operating 
effectiveness of controls 
process. 

relevant to such 

lni!t i:;. 1( rit Co'"r~·1poncient 1111 t" 
Delo1tte Touche To h mat su Limited 
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S. No Key audit m atter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Du rin g the year, the Modaraba h as recognized . Reviewed contracts w ith customers to obtain an 
revenu e from ijarah of Rs .1 .255 billion which is understanding o f terms particu lar ly relating to 
approximately 16% higher as compared to period of contract and rates and assessed the 
p revious year and it represents 59% of total appropriateness of revenue recognition policies 
revenue. and practices followed by the Modaraba. 

When identifying and assessing the risk . Performed substantive audit procedures 
relating to revenu e recognition, our focu s was including analytica l procedures and test of 
whether the revenue recorded by the detail s over revenue transactions a longwith 
m anagement actually occurred during the year review of re lated supporting documents, 
and p roperly recorded in the correct including invoices and hours log sheets. 
accounting period. . Performed cut-off procedures to ensure t hat 
Considering t he aforementioned reasons revenue is recognized in t he correct accounting 
together with growth in revenue du ring the period. 
year, we have identified this area as a key audit 
m atter. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

Managem ent is responsib le for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
annual report but does not include the fin ancial st atements and our auditor's report thereon . 

Our opin ion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
as su rance conclus ion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent wit h the fin ancial statem ents or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to b e materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude t hat there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in th is regard . 

Responsibilities of M anagement and Board o f Directors o f the Modaraba Company for the Financial Statements 

Management of the Modaraba Com pany is responsible for the preparation and fair p resentation of the financial 
statement s in accordance with the accounting an d rep orting standards as applicab le in Pakistan and th e requ irements 
of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Flotation and Control) Ord inance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980) and for such 
internal control as management of the Modaraba Company determines is nec essary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material m isstatement, w hether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management of the Modaraba Com pany is responsible for assessing the 
Modaraba's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, m atters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting un less m anagement of the Modaraba Company either intends to liquidate the 
Modaraba or to cease operations, or has no realistic a lternative but to do so. 

Board of directors of the Modaraba Company are respons ible for overseeing the Modaraba's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Respons ibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obt ain reasonable assurances about whether the financial stat ements as a whole are free from 
materia l misstatement, whether du e to fraud o r error. and to issue an auditor's report that includes our o pinion. 
Reasonable assu rance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements c an arise from 
frau d o r error and are con s idered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of u sers taken on the basis of these financial statem ents. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
profession al skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidenc e that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a b asis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but n o t for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Modaraba's internal control; 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management of the Modaraba Company; 

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management of the Modaraba Company's use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Modaraba's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty ex ists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclos ures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions m ay cause the Modaraba to cease to continue as a going concern; and 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the board of directors of t he Modaraba Company regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit finding s, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify d u ring our audit. 

We also provide the board of directors of the Mod araba Company with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matte rs that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors of the Modaraba Company, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe t hese matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably b e expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) Proper books of account have been kept b y the Modaraba Company in respect of the Modaraba as required by 
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Flotat ion and Contro l) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980); 

b) the statement of financial position, the st atement of pro fit and loss and other comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement together with the notes thereon have been drawn up 
in conformity with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba ( Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI o f 1980) 
and are in agreement with the books of account; 
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Charte red Accountants 

c) business conducted, investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year by the 
Modaraba were in accordance with the objects, terms and c onditions o f the Modaraba; and 

d) Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1 980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the 
Modaraba and depos ited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent audito r's report is Shafqat Ali. 

'!t ~ Cha~ntants 
Place: K arachi 
Date: September 27, 2024 
UDIN: AR202410186x8KkJeTVR 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
ASAT JUNE30,2024 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 

Tangible assets 
Right-of-use assets 
Intangible assets 
Long term deposits 
Long-term loan 

Current assets 
Stores, spa res and loose tools 
Trade debtors 
Unbilled revenue - contract assets 
Taxation - net 
Loans, advances, prepayments and other receivable 
Tax refunds due from Government 
Cash and bank balances 
Total current assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Capltal and reserves 

Authorised capital 
75,000,000 certificates of Rs. 1 0/- each 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 
Statutory reserves 
Unappropriated profit 
Total capita I and reserves 

Non-current llabllltles 
Diminishing musharika financing 
Lease liabilities 
Deferred taxation 

Current liabilities 
Current portion of diminishing musharaka financing 
Current portion of lease liabilities 
Creditors, accrued and other I ia bilities 
Advance from customer - contract liabilities 
Taxation - net 
Unclaimed dividend 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Note 

6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 

12 
13 
14 
15 

16 
17 

18 

19 
20 

18 
19 
21 

12 

22 

The annexed notes from 1to46 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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For Eman Management (Private) Limited 
(Modaraba Management Company) 

_,.f u-ri.iuAAC 

June 30, 2024 
(Rupees) 

1,327, 101,984 
72,231,370 

5,028,000 
4,635,714 

1,408,997,068 

154,052,819 
282,355, 128 

50,014,359 

74,043,115 
1 05,635, 177 
256,426,656 
922,527,254 

2,331,524,322 

750,000,000 

750,000,000 
243,433,255 
403, 191,280 

1,396,624,535 

208,908,596 
68,113,345 
66,581,780 

343,603,721 

1 29,520,305 
17,003,320 

426,887,829 
13,512,840 
4,039,202 

332,570 
591,296,066 

2,331 ,524,322 

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director 
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June 30, 2023 
(Rupees) 

1,305,252,475 
85,186,650 

5,028,000 

1,395,467, 125 

74,450,140 
237,873,784 
44,712,830 

3,611,445 
76,240,882 

105,635, 1 77 
246,423, 197 
788,947,455 

2, 184,414,580 

750.000.000 

750,000,000 
199,759,080 
303,494,578 

1,253,253,658 

331,921,998 
76,924,304 
58,149,224 

466,995,526 

176,934,471 
10,529,266 

271,598,844 
4,942,361 

160,454 
464, 165,396 

2, 184,414,580 

Director 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

June 30, 2024 

Note (Rupees) 

ljarah rentals - net 23 1,254,740,655 
Operation and maintenance income - net 24 867,482,295 

2, 122,222,950 

Operating expenses 25 (1,544,446,464) 
Gross Profit 577,776,486 

Administrative expenses 26 (55,271,212) 
Other expenses 27 (233,000) 
Other income 28 56,658,691 
Finance costs 29 (119,448,309) 
Impairment loss on financial assets 11.2.1to11.3.1 

(1 1 8,293,830) 
459,482,656 

Modaraba Management Company's fees 30 (45,948,266) 
Provision for Sindh Sales tax on Modaraba Management fees (S,973,275) 
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (8,151,222) 
Profit before levies and taxation 399,409,893 

Levies 31 (34,527,755) 
Profit before taxation 364,882, 138 

Taxation 32 (146,511,261) 

Profit for the year 218,370,877 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income for the year 218,370,877 

Earnings per certificate - basic and diluted 33 2.91 

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

For Eman Management (Private) Limited 
(Modaraba Management Company) 

_,.f u-ri.iuAAC 
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director 
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June 30, 2023 
(Rupees) 

1,079,276,419 
682,525,821 

1,761,802,240 

(1,273, 175,946) 
488,626,294 

(51,944,798) 
(14,945,050) 
25,034,297 
(92,216,076) 
(22,926,402) 

(156,998,029) 
331 ,628,265 

(33, 162,827) 
(4,311,168) 
(5,883,085) 

288,271,185 

(1,909,499) 
286,361,686 

(98,860, 138) 

187,501,548 

187,501,548 

2.50 

Director 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Profit before levies and taxation 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation on tanglble assets 
Depreclatlon on right-of-use assets 
Amortization on intangible assets 
Impairment loss on financial assets 
Provision for stores~ spares and loose tools 
Finance costs 
Unrealized exchange gain on foreign currency - net 
Gain on disposal of tangible assets 
Modaraba Management Company's fee 
Provision for Sindh Sales tax on Modaraba Management fees 
Provision for Sindh Workers• Welfare Fund 
Income on term deposit receipts 
Income on deposits with banks 

Cash generated before working capital changes 

Working capltal changes 

(Increase) I decrease In current assets: 

Stores~ spares and loose tools 
Unbilled revenue 
Trade debtors 
Long term deposits 
Long-t:erm loan 
Loans. advances. prepayments and other receivables 

Increase/ (decrease) in current liabilities 

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 
Advance from cust:omer - contract llabrlltles 
Cash generated from operations 

Income tax paid 
Levies paid 
Finance cost paid 
Purchased tangible assets for ijarah 
Modaraba Management Company's fee paid 
Net: cash generated from operating activities 

Ca5h flow5 from lnve5tlng actlvltle5 

Purchased tangible assets for own use 
Proceeds from disposal of tangible assets 
Income on term deposit received 
Income on bank deposlt:s received 

Net: cash generated from Investing activities 

Ca5h flows from financing activities 

Diminishing musharaka financing obtained 
Repayment of diminishing musharaka financing 
Repayment of lease llabllrtles 
Dividend paid 
Net: ca5h (u5ed In) I generated from financing actlvltle5 
Net: Increase In cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and ca5h equivalents at begin nlng of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an Integral part of these financial statements. 

Note 

18 
19 

15 

June 30, 2024 
(Rupees) 

399A09,893 

158A12,314 
22.594,495 

-

-
-

1 1 9,448.309 
(363,694) 

(3, 1 84,21 0) 
45,948,266 

5.973,275 
8,151,222 

(40,888,846) 
(9.929,657) 

306,161A74 
705.571 .367 

(79,602,679) 
(5.301 .529) 

C44A81 ,344) 
-

(4,635,714) 
1,857,511 

(132, 1 63,755) 

146,251,434 
8,570A79 

728.229.525 

(130A28,058J 
(34,527,755) 

(119,586,380) 
(139,71 3,203) 

(33, 1 62,827) 
270,811,302 

(44,703,460) 
7,339,050 

40,888,846 
10,269,913 

13.794,349 

(1 70,427,568) 
(29,346,740) 
(74,827,884) 

(274.602, 192) 
10.003.459 

246A23,197 
256.426.656 
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For Eman Management (Private) Limited 
(Modaraba Management Company) 

_,.f u-ri.iuAAC 
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director 
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June 30, 2023 
(Rupees) 

288,271 • 1 85 

1 69,742,620 
17,087,513 

56,501 
22,926,402 
16,814,398 
92,216,076 

-
(147,700) 

33,162,827 
4,311,168 
5,883,085 

(14,939,927) 
(9,946,670) 

337, 166,293 
625.437.478 

(5, 1 91 ,833) 
(19,045,549) 

(2,854,268) 
(330,000) 
-

14,236,232 
(13, 185.418) 

(224A54,4 11) 
(881,942) 

386,915,707 

(95,775,279) 
(1,909,499) 

(79, 1 22,426) 
(73,464, 1 68) 
(32,322,033) 

1 04,322,302 

(13,558,470) 
987,700 

13,426,003 
8,432,746 

9,287,979 

340,000,000 
(262, 1 90,956) 

(19,53 1 ,644) 
(1,390) 

58.276.010 
1 71,886.291 

74,536,906 
246.423. 1 97 

Director 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

Paid-up certificate 
capital 

-----------------

Balance as at June 30, 2022 750,000,000 

Profit for the year ~ 11 Other comprehensive income for the year 
Total comprehensive income for the year 
Transfer to statutory reserve 

Balance as at June 30, 2023 750,000,000 

Profit for the year ~ 11 Other comprehensive income for the year 
Total comprehensive income for the year 
Transfer to statutory reserve 

Transactions with owners 
Distribution for the year ended June 30, 2023 
@Re.1 per certificate 

Balance as at June 30, 2024 750,000,000 

Statutory Unappropriated 
Total reserve* profit 

(Rupees) ---------- ---------------

162,25 8,770 153,493,340 1,065,752, 110 

~ 11 
187,501,54~ I I 187,501,54~ I 

187,501,548 187,501,548 
37,500,310 (37,500,310) 

199,759,080 303,494,578 1,253,253,658 

~ 11 
218.370.87~ I I 218,370,87~ I 

218,370,877 218,370,877 
43,674,175 (43,674,175) 

(75,000,000) (75,000,000) 
243,433,255 403, 191,280 1,396,624,535 

*Statutory reserves represents profit set aside at the discretion of the management as allowed under the Modaraba Regulations, 
2021 issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. 

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

5f/j IJ 
Chief Financial Officer 

For Eman Management (Private) Limited 
(Modaraba Management Company) 

_,.f u-ri.iuAAC 
Chief Executive Officer Director 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE VEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

Orient Rental Modaraba (the Modaraba) is a multipurpose and perpetual modaraba formed under the 
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and the Rules framed 
thereunder and is managed by Eman Management (Private) Limited (the Modaraba Management Company). 
The Modaraba Management Company is incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 
1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and is registered with the Registrar of Modaraba Companies and 
Modaraba under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980. The 
Modaraba was formally listed on November 17, 2017 on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. After receiving the 
certificate of minimum subscription the Modaraba commenced its operations with effect from November 24, 
2017. The Modaraba is primarily engaged in the business of ijarah, operation and maintenance services. 

The geographical location and address of Modaraba's business units are as follows: 

Registered office 

Plot No. 9, Sector 24, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi. 

Other offices 

S.no Address 

1 1st Floor, Sulaiman Centre, Plot No SC-5, Sector 15, at Brookes Chowrangi, Karachi, Pakistan. 
2 1 KM, Defence Road, Off, Raiwind Road Lahore, Pakistan. 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

2.1 Statement of compliance 

2.1.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 

applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; 

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) as notified under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2017 and made applicable to Modarabas; 

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and 

Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, the Modaraba 
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Modaraba Regulations, 2021 and directives issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). 
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Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Modaraba Companies and 
Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance 1980, the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981 and 
Modaraba Regulations, 2021 and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP) differ from the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) the provisions of and 
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981 and 
Modaraba Regulations, 2021 and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP) shall be followed. 

During the year, SECP amended the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981 through SRO 203, 2024 
dated February 15, 2024, and changed the nomenclature of the financial statements by changing the Balance 
Sheet to Statement of Financial Position and Profit and Loss Account to Statement of Profit and Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income. Further, previously two separate statements were being presented for Profit and Loss 
and Other Comprehensive Income, due to above amendment now single statement is prepared for profit and 
loss and other comprehensive income. 

2.2 Basis of measurement 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless stated otherwise. 

2.3 Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of the Modaraba are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Modaraba operates (the functional currency). These financial statements 
are presented in Pakistan Rupee, which is the Modaraba's functional and presentation currency. 

Amounts have been presented and rounded off to the nearest Pakistan rupees unless otherwise stated. 

2.4 Amendments to accounting standards that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2024 

The following new accounting standards and amendments are effective for the year ended June 30, 2024. 
These amendments are either not relevant to the Modaraba's operations or are not expected to have 
significant impact on the Modaraba's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures. 

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and IFRS practice statement 2 - Disclosure 
of accounting policies 

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' - Definition of 
accounting estimates 

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' -deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single 
transaction. 

Amendments to IAS 12' Income taxes' - International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules 
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Due to the adoption of Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure of accounting 

policies effective from January 01, 2023. The word 'significant' has been replaced with 'material' as reflected in 

related note of accounting polices (note 5). Although the amendments did not result in any changes to the 

accounting policies themselves. 

2.5 New standard and amendments to accounting standards that are not yet effective 

The following new accounting standard and amendments are only effective for accounting periods, beginning 
on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These amendments are either not relevant to the 
Modaraba's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Modaraba's financial statements 
other than certain additional disclosures. 

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Clarification on how seller-lessee subsequently 
measures sale and leaseback transactions 

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of 

Effective from 
Accounting period 

beginning on or 
after 

January 01, 2024 

liabilities as current or non-current along with Non-current liabilities with January 01, 2024 
Covenants 

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' and IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments 
Disclosures' - Supplier Finance Arrangements 

Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' 
Clarification on how entity accounts when there is long term lack of 
Exchangeability 

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance Contracts' (including amendments made in June 2020 and 
December 2021) 

Amendments IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' and IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments 
Disclosures' - Classification and measurement offinancial instruments 

January 01, 2024 

January 01, 2025 

January 01, 2026 

January 01, 2026 

Other than the aforesaid amendments, IASB has also issued following standards which have not been adopted 
locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan: 

IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards 
IFRS 18 - Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements 
IFRS 19 - Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND CHANGES THEREIN 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards requires 
the use of accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of 
applying the Modaraba's accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are 
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances. The matters involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or 
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised prospectively commencing from the period of revision. In the process of applying the 

Modaraba's accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgements which are 
significant to the financial statements. 

3. 1 Useful lives, pattern of flow of economic benefits and impairment of tangible and intangible assets 

Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based 
on the analysis by the management of the Modaraba. Further, the Modaraba reviews the value of the assets for 
possible impairment on an annual basis and any change in the estimates in the future might affect the 
carrying amount of respective item of tangible and intangible assets, with a corresponding effect on the 
depreciation I amortization charge and impairment. 

3.2 Impairment loss on financial assets 

The Modaraba reviews its doubtful debtors at each reporting date to assess whether provision should be 
recorded in the profit and loss account in addition to the mandatory provision required in accordance with the 

Modaraba Regulations, 2021 issued by the SECP. In particular, judgement by management is required in the 
estimates of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provision required. 
Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in 
future changes to the provisions. The Modaraba also takes into account the implication of IFRS-9 in its 
recognition of Expected Credit Loss while considering the aging analysis using factors that are based on 
assumptions. 

3.3 Provision against slow moving stores, spares and loose tools 

The Modaraba reviews the net realisable value of stores, spares and loose tools to assess any diminution in the 
respective carrying values. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of 
stores and spares with a corresponding effect on the profit and loss account of those future years. 

The Modaraba exercises judgement and makes provision for slow moving stores, spares and loose tools based 
on their future usability. 

3.4 Right of use assets and their related lease liabilities 

The Right ofuse assets includes initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made 
at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. Right of use 
assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the right of use assets. Further, the 
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Modaraba remeasure the lease liability when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a 
change in fixed lease payments or an index or rate. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use assets, or is recorded in profit and loss account if the carrying amount of right-of­
use assets has been reduced to zero. 

4. ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING POLICY 

4.1 Accounting for minimum taxes and final taxes 

'IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum taxes and Final taxes' (the guide) was issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) in May 2024 which is applicable for the reporting 
year ending on June 30, 2024 and onwards. 

In the given guide it has been stated that minimum taxes and final taxes which are charged as per the 
provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 previously were accounted for and presented as income taxes 
within the scope of IAS 12 'Income taxes'. However, as per IAS 12, income taxes include all domestic and 
foreign taxes which are based on taxable profits. Whereas the term taxable profits I (losses) as per IAS 12 states 
that "taxable profit (tax loss) is the profit (loss) for a period, determined in accordance with the rules established 
by the taxation authorities, upon which income taxes are payable (recoverable)." 

In continuation of this, the guide has referred para BC4 of IFRIC 21 'Levies' where it is further clarified that taxes 
whose calculation is based on gross amounts such as revenue do not meet the definition of income taxes 
since it is not based on taxable profits hence these are considered as 'Levies' as per IFRIC 21. 

In view of the above clarifications from ICAP, it has been established that minimum tax and final taxes do not 
meet the criteria of income tax expense as per IAS 12 hence it should be accounted for under IFRIC 21 'Levies' 
and IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets'. 

The guide issued by ICAP provides two approaches to account for minimum and final taxes, which is a choice 
of accounting policy of which the Modaraba has chosen the following: 

Approach (b): 

Designate the amount calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate as an income tax within the 
scope of IAS 12 'Income Taxes' and recognise it as current income tax expense. Any excess over the amount 
designated as income tax, is then recognised as a levy falling under the scope of IFRIC 21 /IAS 37. 

Under approach (b) i.e. when the excess is treated as a 'levy; the effective rate of income tax is equal to the 
enacted rate of income tax. 

Similarly, any amount deducted as final taxes will be classified as a levy in the statement of profit and loss and 
other comprehensive income and there would be no deferred tax liability I (asset) recognised in case of final 
taxes. 
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Super tax charged to entities as per provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, will be classified as either 
'Income Tax' or 'levy' in accordance with guide stated in preceding paragraphs of this guide [i.e. if super tax 
calculation is based on taxable profits as defined in IAS 12, then, such super tax shall be recognised as 
'income tax' otherwise such super tax shall qualify for recognition as 'levy' as per IFRIC 21 I IAS 37). 

Advance taxes paid under any section of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, except minimum taxes paid under 
section 113, which are termed as levy as per the above guide will be classified as 'taxation-net'. 

The above changes have been accounted for in these financial statements as per the requirements of IAS 8' 
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors'. The adoption of this policy did not result 
in re-statement of financial statements since deferred tax liability recognised in the year ended June 30, 2023 
was already at enacted rate and the application of this guide did not result any material differences except 
for reclassifications which are presented as below: 

Effect on statement of financial position 
As at June 30, 2023 

Taxation -net 
Levies - minimum taxes 
Provision for taxation 

Current Previous 
Classification Classification 

--------(Rupees) ----------

(1,909,499) 
(1,909,499) 

(1,909,499) =====(1=,90=9=,4=99=) 

Effect on statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income 

For the year ended June 30, 2023 

Taxation: 

- Current year 
- Deferred tax 

Levies 

- Under section 153 

Effect on Cash Flow Statement 

For the year ended June 30, 2023 

Income tax paid 
Levies paid 

Annua1Report2024 

92,091,016 
6,769,122 

1,909,499 

94,000,515 
6,769,122 

100,769,637 ===l=00=,7=69=,6=3=7 

95,775,279 
1,909,499 

97,684,778 

97,684,778 ======9=7=,6=84=,7=7==8 
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In addition to above, the effective tax rate for deferred tax has been calculated as per the guide which is not 
materially different from tax rate used for calculation of deferred tax. Therefore, comparative figures have not 
been restated. 

S. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 
These have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 

5.1 Tangible assets 

S.1.1 Own use 

These are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes 
expenditure that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

The cost of replacing part of an item of tangible asset is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is 
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Modaraba and its cost 
can be measured reliably. 

Repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income as and 
when incurred. Renewals and improvements are capitalised when it is probable that respective future 
economic benefits will flow to the Modaraba and the cost of the item can be measured reliably and the assets 
so replaced, if any, are retired. 

Residual values are determined by the management as the amount it expects to receive currently for the item 
of property and equipment if these were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its 
useful life based on the prevailing market prices of similar assets at the end of their useful life. 

Useful life is determined by the management based on expected usage of the assets, expected physical wear 
and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence and other similar factors. Residual values and useful lives are 
reviewed, at each financial year end, and adjusted if expectations differ siqnificantlv from previous estimates. 

Depreciation on tangible assets, is charged to statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income 
applying straight line method using the life mentioned in note 6.1. Depreciation is charged from the month of 
addition and no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal. 

Where the carrying amount of an tangible assets are greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is 
written down immediately to its recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposal of tangible assets are taken to the statement of profit and loss and other 
comprehensive income in the year in which asset is disposed of. 
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S. 1 .2 Assets under ijarah 

These are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes 
expenditure that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

The cost of replacing part of an item oftangible assets under ijarah is recognized in the carrying amount of the 
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Modaraba 
and its cost can be measured reliably. 

Repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income as 

and when incurred. Renewals and improvements are capitalised when it is probable that respective future 

economic benefits will flow to the Modaraba and the cost of the item can be measured reliably and the 

assets so replaced, if any, are retired. 

Residual values are determined by the management as the amount it expects to receive currently for the item 
of property and equipment if these were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its 
useful life based on the prevailing market prices of similar assets at the end of their useful life. 

Useful life is determined by the management based on expected usage of the assets, expected physical wear 
and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence and other similar factors. Residual values and useful lives are 

reviewed, at each financial year end, and adjusted if expectations differ significantly from previous estimates. 

Depreciation on tangible assets under ijarah is charged to statement of profit and loss and other 
comprehensive income applying straight line method using the life mentioned in note 6.1. Depreciation is 
charged from the month of addition and no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal. 

Where the carrying amount of tangible assets under ijarah are greater than its estimated recoverable amount, 
it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposal of tangible assets are taken to the statement of profit and loss and other 
comprehensive income in the year in which asset is disposed of. 

s. 1 .3 Capital work in progress 

These are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditures connected with specific 
assets incurred and advances made during installation and construction period are carried under this head. 
These are transferred to specific asset as and when the asset is available for its intended use. 
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5.2 Right-of-use assets and their related lease liabilities 

The Modaraba accounts for right-of-use assets acquired under lease agreement by recording the right-of-use 
assets and related lease liabilities. 

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the following: 

initial amount of the lease liability; 

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentive received; 

any initial direct costs incurred; and 

an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or 
the site on which it is located. 

The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight line method over the shorter of lease-term or asset's 
economic life. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment loss, if any, and adjusted for certain re­
measurements of the lease liability. 

Initially on lease commencement date, the lease liability is measured at the present value of unpaid lease 
payments. These unpaid lease payments are discounted using profit rate implicit in the lease, if readily 
determinable. If that rate cannot be readily determined then the incremental borrowing rate is used. 

The lease liability is subsequently measured (at amortized cost) by increasing the carrying amount to reflect 
profit on the lease liability using the effective profit method and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the 
lease payments made. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change 
in fixed lease payments or an index or rate, change in the Modaraba's estimate of the amount expected to be 
payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Modaraba changes its assessment of whether it will exercise 
a purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of 
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income if the 
carrying amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

For short term leases and leases of low I immaterial value assets, the Modaraba recognizes the lease payments 
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is 
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. 

5.3 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets having an definite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. 

Costs associated with maintaining these assets are charged to statement of profit and loss and other 
comprehensive income as and when incurred, however, costs that are directly attributable to the identifiable 
asset and have probable economic benefits, are recognised as intangible assets. 

Annua1Report2024 



.Q.~,~ 
FOCUSED ON SOLUTIONS 

All intangible assets are estimated to have definite useful lives and are amortized using the straight line 
method over life mentioned in note 8. Amortization on addition is charged from the month on which asset is 
available for use up to the month preceding the disposal of asset. 

The assets' amortization method and useful lives are reviewed on annual basis. The effect of any adjustment to 
amortization method and useful lives is recognised prospectively as a change in accounting estimate. Gain or 
loss on disposal of intangible assets, if any, is taken to the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive 
income in the year in which these arise. 

5.4 Stores, spare parts and loose tools 

Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at lower of cost determined on weighted average basis and net 
realisable value. Cost comprises invoice value and other cost incurred in bringing the spare parts and loose 
tools to their present location and condition. Items in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value plus 
other charges paid thereon up to the reporting date. The Modaraba reviews the carrying amount of spares and 
loose tools on a periodic basis and provision is made for slow moving and obsolescence on periodic basis. 

5.5 ljarah rentals and operation and maintenance income receivable 

These are stated at amount receivable which is fair value of consideration receivable for services rendered, less 
an estimate made for doubtful receivables determined at a higher of provision as per Modaraba Regulations 
2021, and using expected credit loss model (ECL) as required by IFRS 9 as at reporting date. Balances 
considered bad and irrecoverable are written off when identified. 

5.6 Loan and other receivable 

Loans and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less 
an allowance for ECL. Allowance for ECL is based on lifetime ECLs that result from all possible default events 
over the expected life of the loans and other receivables. Bad debts, if any, are written off when considered 
irrecoverable. 

5.7 Staff retirement benefits 

Defined contribution plan 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions 
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for 
contribution to provident fund are recognized as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit and loss 
and other comprehensive income as incurred. 

The Modaraba has recognised contributory Provident Fund (the Fund) for all its permanent employees. Equal 
monthly contributions to the Fund is being made both by the Modaraba and by the employees, at the rate of 
10% of basic pay. 

5.8 Provisions 

Annua1Report2024 



.Q.~,~ 
FOCUSED ON SOLUTIONS 

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Modaraba has a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate. 

5.9 Financial instruments 

5.9.1 Financial assets 

5.9.1.1 Recognition and initial measurement of financial assets 

Financial assets are recognised in the Modaraba's statement of financial position when the Modaraba becomes 

a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial 

assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets, as 

appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at 

fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss and other 
comprehensive income. 

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. 
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within 
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. 

5.9.1.2 Subsequent measurement offinancial assets 

Financial assets at amortised cost {AC) 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated 
using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the 
financial asset. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

All financial assets at FVfOCI are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to 
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). 

For debt instruments classified as financial assets at MOCI, the amounts already recognised in other 
comprehensive income are reclassified to income statement on derecognition of financial assets. This 
treatment is in contrast to equity instruments classified as financial assets at MOCI, where there is no 
reclassification on derecoanition. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

All financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value, with 
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recorded in the statement of profit and loss and other 
comprehensive income. 
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5.9.1.3 Derecognition of financial assets 

'The Modaraba derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
ex pi res, or when it transfers the financial asset and su bsta ntia I ly a 11 the risks and rewards ofownership of the asset 
to a nether entity. If the Mod a ra ba neither transfers nor retains s u bstanti a I ly a 11 the risks and rewards ofowne rsh i p 
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Modaraba recognises its retained interest in the asset and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Modaraba retains substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Modaraba continues to recognise the financial asset and also 
recognises a col I atera lised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

5.9.2 Financial liabilities 

'The financial liabilities are recognised in the Modaraba's statement of financial position when the Modaraba 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. These include trade payables, accrued and other 
liabilities and are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured 
at a mortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the 
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid 
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or 
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the 
amortised cost of a financial liability. 

5.9.2.1 Derecognition of financial liabilities 

'A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. 
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income. 

5.9.3 Impairment 

Financial assets 

'The Modaraba recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit loss on trade debts using ECL model. The amount 
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective 
financial assets. 

'The Modaraba always recognizes lifetime ECL for trade debts. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated 
using a provision matrix based on the modaraba's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are 
specific to the receivables, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the 
forecast direction of conditions atthe reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate. 

'For all other financial assets, the modaraba recognizes lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition, the Modaraba measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at 
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'an amount equal to 12-month ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognized is based on 
significant increase in the likelihood or riskofa default occurring since initial recognition instead ofon evidence of 
a financial asset being credit-impaired atthe reporting date. 

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from 
default events on a financial instrumentthat are possible with in 12 months after the reporting date. 

Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is 
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An 
impairment loss is recognized, as an expense in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive 
income, for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is determined through 
discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are 
grouped at the lowest I eve ls for which there a re separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). 

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
a mount. An i m pai rm ent loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss 
had been recognized. 

5.9.4 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial 
position when there is a legally enforceable right to off set the recognized amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

5.1 O Foreign currencies 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated in Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the 
date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated in Pakistan Rupees at the 
exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are charged to statement of profit 
and loss and other comorehensive income. 

S.11 Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the economic benefits will flow to the Modaraba i.e. when 
performance obligation is satisfied and revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognised at fair value 
of consideration received or receivable. Revenue from different sources is recognised on the following basis: 

s.11.1 ljarah rentals 

ljarah rentals are recognised as income on an accrual basis, as and when rentals become due on a systematic 
basis over the ljarah period i.e. when performance obligation is satisfied and are billed on a monthly basis. 
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5.11.2 Operation and maintenance services 

Revenue from operation and maintenance services is recognised on a systematic basis over the period i.e. 
when performance obliqation is satisfied. 

5. 11 .3 Income on deposit accounts and term deposits with banks 

Returns on bank deposits and term deposits are recognized on accrual basis. 

5.12 Cash and cash equivalent 

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, balances with 
banks, short-term running finances and term deposit receipts of less than 3 months. 

5.13 Dividend distribution and other appropriations of profit 

Profit distributions to the certificate holders and other appropriations of profit are recognized in the period in 
which these are approved. Transfer to statutory reserve and any of the mandatory appropriations as may be 
required by law are recognized in the period to which these relate. 

5.14 Earnings per certificate 

The Modaraba presents earnings per certificate (EPC) data for its certificates. Basic EPC is calculated by dividing 
the profit or loss attributable to certificate holders of the Modaraba by weighted average number of 
certificates outstanding during the period. Diluted EPC is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable 
to certificate holders and the weighted average number of certificates outstanding for the effects of all dilutive 
potential certificates. 

5.15 Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 

These are recognized and carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for 
goods and services received. 

5.16 Diminishing musharaka financing payable 

Diminishing musharaka financing payable is recognized initially at cost, less attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, this is stated at original cost less principal repayments. 

5.17 Segment Reporting 

As per IFRS 8, *Operating Segments~ operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal 
reporting used by the chiefoperating decision-maker. The Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the chief 
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the 
operating segments. 

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Modaraba that is engaged in providing related 
products or services and which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. 
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The Modaraba's primary format for segment reporting is based on'business segments' as the Modaraba conducts 
its operations only in Pakistan. 

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Modaraba's entire product portfolio and considers the business 
to have two operating segments. The Modaraba's asset allocation decisions are based on an integrated 
investment strategy. The M oda raba's perfo rma nee is eva I uated with respectto the two operating segments. 

5.18 Levy 

A levy is an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits that is imposed by governments on entities in 
accordance with legislation (i.e. laws and/or regulations), other than: 

(a) those outflows of resources that are within the scope of other standards. 

(b) fines or other penalties that are imposed for breaches of the legislation. 

In these financial statements, levy includes minimum taxes differential, if any, final taxes and super taxes which 
are based on other than taxable profits. The corresponding advance tax paid, except for minimum taxes under 
section 113, which are treated as levy are recognised in prepaid assets as 'taxation-net'. 

i. Minimum taxes 

Minimum taxes includes: 

a) minimum tax paid under section 113 over income tax determined on income streams taxable at 
general rate of taxation and; 

b) minimum tax withheld I collected I paid or computed over tax liability (computed on related 
income tax streams taxable at general rate of tax), is not adjustable against tax liability of 
subsequent tax years. 

Amount over income tax determined on income streams taxable at general rate of taxation shall be 
treated as revenue taxes. 

The Modaraba determines, based on expected future taxable profits, that excess paid under section 113 by 
the entity over and above its tax liability (on income stream(s) taxable at general rate of taxation) is 
expected to be realized in subsequent tax years, then, such excess shall be recorded as deferred tax asset 
adjustable against tax liabilityfor subsequent tax years. This shall be recognized as'deferred tax asset'forthe 
reason that it represents unused tax credit as it can be adjusted only againsttax liability (of subsequent tax 
years) arising on taxable income subject to general rate of taxation. Such an asset shall be subject to 
requirements contained in IAS 12'1ncomeTax'. 

ii. Final taxes 

Final taxes includes tax charged I withheld I paid on certain income streams under various provisions of 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (Ordinance). Final tax is charged I computed under the Ordinance, without 
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reference to income chargeable to tax at the general rate of tax and final tax computed I withheld or 
paid for a tax year is construed as final tax liability for the related stream of Income under the Ordinance. 

Final tax paid is considered to be full and final discharge of the tax liability for the Modaraba for a tax 
year related to that income stream. 

S. 19 Taxation 

i. Current 

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted I corporate tax rate after taking 
into account tax credits and rebates available, if any, as per the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

ii. Deferred 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method for all temporary differences at the reporting date 
between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes 
after considering, the enacted tax rate. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is 
recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carried forward unused tax losses, if any, to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which such temporary differences 
and tax losses can be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at enacted tax rate that are expected to apply to the 
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

6. TANGIBLE ASSETS 

Assets under ijarah 
Own use 

2024 2023 
Note -----(Rupees)----

6.1 
6.1 
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1,265,798,356 
61,303,628 

1,327, 101,984 

1,272,254,686 
32,997,789 

1,305,252,475 



6.1 Tangiblussets 

-------- ------ -UARAH {Note6.1.3)- ---- ------ ---- ------------------------------OWN USE------------------------------

Description Generators Accessories 
Machinery and 

Sul>-tolil 
Elec!Rllllc MotarVl!hkle Fumltureand 

GeneritDIS 
Lusehokl 

Sub-total Total 
equipments appliances (Note6.1JI fixture improvements 

(Rupom) 

Y•r ended June 30. 2024 

Opening net book value 1,145,439,615 35,188,041 91.627.000 1,272,254.686 2,5Tl,237 16,337,m 84,830 480.874 13,517,126 32,997,789 1,305,252,475 
Additions 122,298.142 17,415,()61 139,713,203 1,245,319 13,635.730 152,500 29,669,911 44,703,4li0 184A16,663 

Cost (849,500) (6,625,()44) (7,474,544) (7,474,544) 
Accumulated deprl!Ciatlon 849,500 2.470,204 3,319,704 3,319,704 
Disposals -Net book value (4, 154,840) (4, 154,840) (4,154,840) 
Depreciation 1121,646.816) (14,432,289) (10,()90,428) (146,169,533) (1,245,152) (2,674.802) (73,o32) (153,()05) (8,096,790) 112,242,781) (158,412,314) 

Cosing netbaokY1lue 11146.090.941 3!i 1Z!!i!13 81ij3e.!SZ l.a!ii1~S6 iij77~ 2l1143i!10 1~91 3Z7J!! 3~~7 61.WJSI 1i!1P11011"' 

Cost 1,946,564,837 147,672,081 119.755,165 2,213,992,C63 19,422,840 36,610,125 4,070,363 1,639,344 76,202,805 137,945,477 2,351,937,560 
Accumuiated depreciation IID:l.473,896) (109,501,268) (38,218,563) (948.193,nn (16,845A36l (13,466,315) (3.~,()65) (1,311A7S) (41,112,558) (76,641,849) (1 ,024,835,576) 

Net book value 1,146~90,941 38,170~13 81~36~2 1~517~56 ~STl,404 23,143,810 154a98 327!2 35,0~47 61~3,628 1,327, 101,984 

Yt1rtndedJunt30. 2023 

Opening net book value 1,240.()69,750 48,911,561 59,652,333 1,348,633,644 2,866,755 15,124,362 930.766 743,169 13,544,657 33,209,709 1,381,843,353 
Additions 31,696,624 2,400,000 39,367,544 73,464,168 2,639.046 3,587,865 7,331,559 13,558,470 87,()22,638 
Transfl!r from Capltal work~n-progress 3,272,029 2,702,600 5,974,629 994.475 994,475 6,969,104 

l'.edassified (1,160,500) 1,160,600 (1,322,218) 1,322,218 

Cost I (4,136,752) {2,826,786) (6,963,538)11 (SS.ODO) (55,COO) (7,D18,S38)1 
Accumulated deprl!C~tion 3,296,752 2,826,786 6,123,538:: 55,000 55,000 6,178,538 
Disposals -Net book value [840,000) (840.0DO) (840,000) 
Depreciation (127,598,188) (17,284, 120) (10,0'J5.44n (154,977,755) (1,506,346) (2,374.SOS) (845,936) (262,295) (9,675,783) (14,764,865) (169,742,620] 

Closing net book value 1.145,439.615 35,188,041 91,627.()30 1,272,254,686 2.577,237 16,337,722 84,830 480,874 13,517,126 32,997,789 1,305,252,475 

Cost 1,824,266,695 130,257.020 119.755,165 2.074,278,880 19,027,()21 29,599,439 3,917,863 1.639,344 46,532,894 100,716,561 2,174,995,441 
Aco.Jmu~ted depreciation (678,827.osoJ (95,Q68,979) (28,128,135) (002,024, 194) (16,449.784) (13,261,M (3,833,Q.33) (1, 158,470) (33,015,768) 167,718,772) (869.742,966) 

Net book value 1114514391615 35118~041 91~7~0 1~721254~ ~577~7 1~371722 84~0 480~74 13~171126 ~9971789 11305~475 

Depredation 1111! 5'16 10%-50% 10% 33'16 2096 25'16 5'16-2096 20%-25% 

6.1.1 Above assets include fully depreciated assets costing Rs. 158119 million (2023: Rs. 115B23 million) still in the Modaraba's use. 

6.1.2 Additions Jndudegenerators acquired by the Modaraba amounting to Rt 10 million (2023: Rs. 20 mllllon)from Orient Energy Systems(Prlvate) Limited, an assoc~ted company. 

6.1.3 This includesgeneratnrs, machinery and equipment and motllf vehicles ti ken under Diminishing Musharika amounting to Rs. 640.743 million (2023 Rs. 697.548 mi lion), Rs. 79372 million (2023: Rs. 87.982 million) and Rt nil million (2023: Rt 431ll mill~n) respectively. 

6.1.4 Depreciation has been alloorted as follows: 
Operating Expenses 
Administrative E'J(penses 

2024 2023 
~ --(Rupees)--

25 
26 

157,173,071 167,918,686 
___ 1._,23_.9,2'-4_3 1,823,934 

158,412,314 ~ 

1• ~ ~o 
m :!i !;tj 
0 ~ H 

~ g t:;t 
0 ~ 2l 
~ e~ 
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6.1.S Disposals of tangible assets 

Particulars Cost 
Aca1mulated 
depreciation 

Carrying Sale 
value proceeds 

--(Rupees)--

7 

Vehicles 

Super Power bike 

Super Power bike 

Super Power bike 

Toyota Reva Hilux 

Electronk Appliances 

Floor Standing 
Inverter AC 

2024 

2023 

53,200 

28.480 

86,864 

6,456,500 

6,625,044 

849,500 

7,474.544 

7,474.544 

7,018,538 

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 

Cost 

Opening balance 

Addition during the year 

Closing balance 

(41,673) 

(S.896) 

(1,448) 

[2,421, 187) 

[2,470,204) 

(849.SOO) 

(3,319,704) 

[3,319,704) 

(6,178,538) 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 
Opening balance 

Charge for the year 
Closing balance 
Carrying value 

11.527 15,000 

22.584 30,000 

8S,416 94,050 

4,03S,313 6,SS0,000 

4,154,840 6,989,050 

350,000 

4,154.840 7,339.050 

4,154,840 7,339,050 

840,000 987,700 

Gain 

3.473 

7.416 

8,634 

2,814,687 

2,834,210 

350,000 

3,184,210 

3,184,210 

147,700 

Note 

7.1 

Mode of 
disposal 

Particulars of 
buyers 

Relationship of 
purchaser with the 

Modaraba 

Negotiation Mr. Saad ur Rehman None 

Negotiation Mr. Saad ur Rehman None 

Negotiation Takaful claim None 

Negotiation Mr. Farukh Siddique Operational Director 

Exchange Af3ar AC Service None 

2024 2023 
-------(Rupees) ------

140,271,790 53,074,035 

9,639,215 87,197,755 

149,911,005 140,271,790 

55,085,140 37,997,627 

22,594,495 17,087,513 
77,679,635 55,085,140 
72,231,370 85,186,650 

7.1 Depreciation is charged using lease term of 2 - 5 years applying straight line basis and has been charged in operating 
expenses. 
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2024 2023 
Note --------(Rupees) -------

8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Software and license 

Cost 838,370 838,370 

Amortization 
-Opening 838,~70 I 781,869 
- For the year 26 56,501 
Accumulated amortization 838,370 838,370 

Net book value as at June 30 8.1 

Annual amortization rate 50% 50% 

8.1 It represents ERP software which is fully amortized and still in use. 

9 LONG TERM DEPOSIT 

Security deposit 9.1 5,028,000 5,028,000 

9.1 It represents security deposit against lease of Lahore and Karachi yard. 

10 STORES, SPARE AND LOOSE TOOLS 

Stores, spares and loose tools 169,369,366 90,202,288 
Provision for stores, spares and loos tools (16,814,398) (16,814,398) 

152,554,968 73,387,890 

Stores, spares and loose tools - in transit 1,497,851 1,062,250 
154,052,819 74,450,140 

11 TRADE DEBTORS 

ljarah rentals 11.2 128,509,560 165,921,640 
Operation and maintenance income 11.3 183,854, 198 101,960,774 

312,363,758 267,882,414 

Impairment loss on financial assets 1 1.2. 1 to 1 1.3.1 (30,008,630) (30,008,630) 
282,355, 128 237,873,784 
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11.1 Trade debtors include exposure which are secured byway of security deposits of Rs. 4.460 million (2023: Rs. 
4.460 million). 

2024 2023 
Note -------(Rupees) ------

11.2 ljarah rentals 

Considered good 
Considered doubtful - classified portfolio 

Impairment loss on ijarah rentals 

11.2.1 Impairment loss on ijarah rentals 

Opening balance 
Charged during the year 
Written off During the year 
Closing balance 

11 .3 Operation and maintenance income 

Considered good 
Considered doubtful - classified portfolio 

Impairment loss on operation and maintenance 

11.3.1 Impairment loss on operation and maintenance 

Opening balance 
Charged during the year 
Written off During the year 
Closing balance 

11.2.1 

11.3.1 

109,961,485 
18,548,075 

128,509,560 
(18,548,075) 
109,961,485 

18,548,075 

18,548,075 

147,373,565 
18,548,075 

165,921,640 
(18,548,075) 
147,373,565 

12,142, l 64 
20,202,917 

(13,797,006) 
18,548,075 

172,393,643 90,500,219 
11,460,555 11,460,555 

183,854, 198 101,960,774 
(11,460,555) (11,460,555) __ .;.........;._;...._"'""" 

172,393,643 90,500,219 

11,460,555 

11,460,555 

9,067,670 
2,723,485 
(330,600) 

11,460,555 

11 .4 As at the reporting date, the provision has been recognized based on expected credit loss (ECL) as the higher 
of provision under the Modaraba Regulations 2021 and IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'. 
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2024 2023 
Note --------(Rupees) -------

12 TAXATION-NET 

Advance tax 
Provision for taxation 
Levies - minimum taxes 

13 LOANS, ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLE 

Takaful claim receivable 
Sales tax receivables 
Loans to staff 13.1 
Advances 
Earnest money 
Prepayments 
Security deposits 
Profit receivable from bank 

168,567,258 97,611,960 
(138,078,705) (92,091,016) 

(34,527,755) (1,909,499) ------
(4,039,202) ___ 3,6_1_1 ='44_5_ 

3,290,712 6,194,048 
38,274,467 32,361,095 
4,941,002 6,021,692 
9,228,768 16,947,534 
2,685,517 2,473,517 
9,079,503 3,436,132 
5,369,478 7,292,940 
1,173,668 1,513,924 

74,043,115 76,240,882 

13.1 Loans are provided to staff for emergency purpose and are unsecured. Non current portion amounts to Rs. 
4.635 million. 

14 TAX REFUNDABLE DUE FROM GOVERNMENT 

Income tax refundable 14.1 105,635, 177 105,635, 177 

This represents income tax refundable due from government for the years upto June 30, 2024. 

14.1 The ageing of tax refund from government at the year-end was as follows: 

Tax Year 2018 5,390,006 5,390,006 
Tax Year 2019 73,893,877 73,893,877 
Tax Year 2020 17,988,940 17,988,940 
Tax Year 2021 8,362,354 8,362,354 

105,635, 177 105,635, 177 
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2024 2023 
Note --------(Rupees) -------

15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

With banks 
- in deposit accounts 15.1 247,467,381 100,395,699 
- in current accounts 8,738,676 5,370,866 
- term deposit receipts 15.2 140,000,000 

256,206,057 245,766,565 

Cash in hand 220,599 656,632 
256,426,656 246,423, 197 

15.1 These balances carry profit at rates ranging from 7% to 10% (2023: 5% to 7%) per annum. 

15.2 It represented term deposit receipts placed for 30 days at profit rate ranging from 20.25% to 21 % (2023: 19.55% 
to 19.75%) per annum. 

16 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL 

2024 

Number of 
certificates 

75,000,000 

2023 

Number of 
certificates 

Modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each 
75,000,000 fully paid in cash 

2024 2023 
------ (Rupees)------

750,000,000 750,000,000 

16.1 EMAN Management (Private) Limited (the Management Company) and ASJN Holdings (Private) Limited holds 
7,500,000 (10%) certificates and 5,000,000 (6.67%) certificates of Rs. 10 each respectively. 

17 STATUTORY RESERVE 

Statutory reserve represents profits set aside at the discretion of the management as allowed under the 
Modaraba Regulations, 2021 issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. 
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2024 2023 
Note --------(Rupees) -------

18 DIMINISHING MUSHARAKA FINANCING 

Secured 
Diminishing musharaka financing 
Current portion shown in current liabilities 

18.1 Movement in diminishing musharaka financing 

Opening Blanace 
Obtained during the year 
Repaid during the year 
Closing Balance 

18.1 338,428,901 
(129,520,305) 
208,908,596 

508,856,469 

(1 70,427,568) 
338,428,901 

508,856,469 
(176,934,471) 
331,921,998 

431,047,425 
340,000,000 
(262, 190,956) 
508,856,469 

18.2 These facilities are secured against the hypothecation of assets under ijarah of Rs.1,263.200 million (2023: 
Rs.1,263.200 million). Share of profit payable on these facilities is 16% to 24.47%. As at reporting date, total 
approved facilities stand at Rs. 807.500 million, unutilize facilities of Rs. 300 million. 

19 LEASE LIABILITIES 

Lease liabilities 
Current portion shown in current liabilities 

19.1 Movement 

Balance at the July 01, 
Additions during the year 
Finance cost accrued 
Repayment 
Balance as at June 30, 

Current portion shown in current liabilities 
Non-current portion shown in non-current liabilities 

19.2 Maturity analysis 

85, 116,665 87,453,570 
(17,003,320) (10,529,266) __ .;........;._'--"'""" 

68,113,345 76,924,304 

87,453,570 16,086,149 
9,639,215 87,197,755 

17,370,620 3,701,310 
(29,346,740) (19,531,644) 
85,116,665 87,453,570 

(17,003,320) (10,529,266) 
68,113,345 76,924,304 

The future minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and the periods in which they will become 
due are as follows: 
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20 

Minimum 
lease 

payments 

2024 
Present 
value of 

2023 
Present 
value of 

Minimum lease 
minimum minimum 

lease payments lease 

payments payments 
---------------------- (Rupees) ------------------------

Not later than 1 year 32,682,167 17,003,320 26,296,740 10,529,266 
Later than one year 86,215,962 68,113,345 107,219,829 76,924,304 

118,898, 129 85,116,665 133,516,569 87,453,570 
Financial charges allocable to future 
periods (33,781,464) ( 46,062, 999) 

85,116,665 85,116,665 87,453,570 87,453,570 

Current portion (17,003,320) (17,003,320) (10,529,266) (10,529,266) 
68,113,345 68,113,345 76,924,304 76,924,304 

It represents lease liabilities against the right-of-use assets recognized with respect to rental premises. All the 
future rentals have been discounted at the Modaraba's weighted average borrowing rate to recognize the 
right-of-use assets and related lease liabilities. 

DEFERRED TAXATION 

Opening 
balance 

Recognised in 
statement of 

profitand loss 
and other 

comprehensive 
income 

Closing 
balance 

------------(Rupees)-----------
Movement for the year ended June 30, 2024 

Taxable temporary differences in respect of: 

- accelerated tax depreciation 
- right-of-use assets 

Deductible temporary differences in respect of: 

Provision for: 

- creditors, accrued and other liabilities 
- provision of trade debtors 
- stores, spares and loose tools 
- lease liabilities 

Deferred tax liability 

80,122,953 
27,259,728 

107,382,681 

6,262,733 
9,602,762 
5,380,607 

27,987,355 
49,233,457 

58,149,224 
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17,059,528 
(1,978,748) 
15,080,780 

3,440,055 
900,259 
504,432 

1,803,478 
6,648,224 

8,432,556 

97,182,481 
25,280,980 

122,463,461 

9,702,788 
10,503,021 
5,885,039 

29,790,833 
55,881,681 

66,581,780 
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Movement for the year ended June 30, 2023 

Taxable temporary differences in respect of: 

- accelerated tax depreciation 
- right-of-use assets 

Deductible temporary differences in respect of: 

Provision for: 

- creditors, accrued and other liabilities 
- amortisation on intangible assets 
- provision of trade debtors 
- stores, spares and loose tools 
- lease liabilities 

Deferred tax liability 

21 CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES 

Creditors 

Accrued expenses 

Other llabllltles 
Remuneration payable to 
Modaraba Management Company 
Deposits from customer 
Withholding income tax payable 
Sales tax payable 
Tax payable 
Payable to Provident Fund 
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 
Provision for indirect taxes 

Opening 
balance 

Recognised in 
statement of 

profit and loss 
and other 

comprehensive 

Closing 
balance 

income 
---------------- (Rupees) -------------

66,122,949 
3,025,534 

69,148,483 

6,878,384 
74,162 

6,150,852 

4,664,983 
17,768,381 

51,380,102 

21.1 

21.2 

21.3 
21.4 
21.5 

14,000,004 
24,234,194 
38,234,198 

(615,651) 
(74,162) 

3,451,910 
5,380,607 

23,322,372 
31,465,076 

6,769,122 

2024 

80,122,953 
27,259,728 

107,382,681 

6,262,733 
-

9,602,762 
5,380,607 

27,987,355 
49,233,457 

58,149,224 

2023 
------- (Rupees) --------

187,253,582 

75,275,767 

45,948,266 
10,703,921 
9,371,925 

36,239,249 
5,557,925 
8,499,878 

27,722,250 
20,315,066 

164,358,480 
426,887,829 

87,629,922 

65,052,837 

33,162,827 
10,456,508 
3,556,046 

25,251,635 
5,557,925 
7,018,325 

19,571,028 
14,341,791 

118,916,085 
271 ,598,844 
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21.1 

21.2 

21.3 

21.4 

21.5 

This amount includes Rs. 130.034 million (2023: Rs. 78.249 million) related to spare parts and loose tools, service 
and maintenance charges, overhauling I purchase of generators, accessories and equipment from Orient 
Energy Systems (Private) Limited, an associated company and Rs. 9.672 million related to purchase of spare 
parts and loose tools from Orient Energy Systems FZCO. 

This includes accrual of financial charges ofRs. 17.21 O million (2023: Rs. 17.348 million) in respect of diminishing 
mush a ra ka f aci I ities availed by the Mod a ra ba. 

The Modaraba operates defined contribution provident fund (the Fund) maintained for its permanent 
employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 10% of the basic salary are made to the Fund both by the 
Modaraba and the employees. 

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 and conditions specified thereunder. 

As a consequence of the 18th amendment to the Constitution, levy for the WWF was introduced by the 
Government of Sindh through the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund (SWWF) Act 2014. SWWF Act 2014, enacted on 
May 21, 2015, requires every Industrial Establishment located in the province ofSindh and having total income 
ofRs.500,000 or more in any year of account commencing on or after the date of closing of account on or after 
December 31, 2013, to pay two percent ofits total income declared to SWWF. 

The Modaraba is of the view that Sindh WWF Act is limited to the province of Sindh and the definition of total 
income as provided in the SWWF encompasses the total income ofan assessee for whole of the country i.e. for 
all provinces, thus in lieu of the definition of the total income under SWWF, 2% contribution to be paid is not 
limited to the province of Sindh. The Modaraba has its operations all across Pakistan therefore total income 
declared in its tax return is a cumulative sum of income for all provinces. Thus, for this reason the definition of 
total income as provided in SWWF is not correct and charging SWWF is ultra vires of the legislative power 
conferred upon the province ofSindh. 

As a result, the Modaraba is of the view that unless there is a mechanism ofapportionment of the total income 
relevant to the province of Sindh, SRB has no legal authority to demand and I or collect SWWF from the 
Modaraba. However, the Modaraba as a matter of abundant precaution has maintained provision for SWWF 
amounting to Rs. 27.722 million (2023: Rs. 19.571 million) in these financial statements. 

The Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) has imposed Sindh Sales Tax on the Modaraba Management Company's 
remuneration with effective from November 1, 2011. In view of the fact that the remuneration is profit sharing 
rather than a fixed fee against rendering of management services by the Modaraba Management Company. 
The NBFI and Modaraba Association of Pakistan, on behalf of a number of Modarabas filed a constitutional 
petition in the High Court of Sindh against which the High Court of Sindh granted an interim stay order. 
Subsequently, the High Court of Sindh, in its judgment dated April 27, 2015, directed the NBFI and Modaraba 
Association of Pakistan to seek remedy in accordance with the law. 

Based on the above the Modaraba has not made any payments to SRB in respect of SST on management fee, 
however, the same is being charged and recognized in these ti na ncia I statements. 
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22 

22.1 

22.1.1 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Contingencies 

The Assistant Commissioner-Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) issued an order 408of2019 demanding Sindh Sales 
Tax of Rs. 51.4 million including penalty amounting to Rs. 2.5 million for ljara Rental income of the Modaraba 
without considering thatthe Modaraba are operating in other provinces where Sindh Sales Tax Act, 2011 is not 
applicable and without considering that Sindh Government has inserted renting of machinery, equipment, 
appliances and other tangible goods in Second Schedule ofSindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 at the rate of 
13% by Finance Act 2019-20. Further by notification number SRB-3-4/21/2019 dated July 01, 2019 the Sindh 
Government has also introduced reduced rate of 5% on above-mentioned services; however, input 
adjustment will not be allowed. The Modaraba has lodged appeal number 306/2019 with Commissioner 
Appea Is dated January 01, 2020 and simultaneously the Modaraba has lodged constitutional petition number 
D-352 of 2020 with High Court of Sindh for pursuing case legally and High Court of Sindh has provided stay 
against SRB order Bl 5 for taking any coercive action against Modaraba via its order number 15212223 I 2020 
dated JanuaryOl ,2020. 

During the year, The Assistant Commissioner - Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) issued an order# 6316 of 2023 
demanding Sindh Sales Tax ofRs. 107.53 million including penalty amounting to Rs. 5.37 million for ljara Rental 
income of the Modaraba. The Modaraba has lodged appeal number 66/2024 with Commissioner Appeal 
dated January 18, 2024. The Modaraba has filed an appeal before the Commissioner Appeals SRB against the 
order of the Assistant Commissioner for the period July 2019 to December 2021 challenging the sales tax 
charged on renting of Generators in excess of reduce rate provided under the Act. The Commissioner Appeal 
SRB has rejected the Modaraba Contention and upheld the order of the Assistant Commissioner. The 
Modaraba has appealed to the Appellate Tribunal against the treatment meted out by the Commissioner 
Appeals and the learned Tribunal has granted stayfrom recovery of impugned demand. 

The legal advisor of the Modaraba believes thatthe outcome of the appeal will be in favor of the Modaraba and 
hence no provision has been made in these financial statements. 

22.1.2 Two ex-employees of the Madara ba has filed suits. Amount of claims involved in these cases is Rs.1.335 million. 

The Modaraba is of the view that the outcome of the cases would be in favor of the Modaraba therefore no 
provision has been made in these financial statements. 

22.2 Commitments 

There were no commitment at the reporting date. 

23 IJARAH RENTALS - NET 

ljarah rentals 
Less: Sales tax 
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2024 2023 
------- (Rupees) ------

1,421,189,280 
(166,448,625) 

1,254,740,655 

1,221,006,598 
(141,730, 179) 

1,079,276,419 
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2024 2023 
Note --------(Rupees) -------

24 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE INCOME - NET 

Operation and maintenance income 
Less: Sales tax 

25 OPERATING EXPENSES 

Salaries and benefits 
Repair, maintenance and related cost 
Provision for stores, spares and loose tools 
Depreciation on tangible assets 
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 
Takaful 
Fuel, freight and transportation 
Staff accommodation and meals 
Short term lease 
Utilities and communication 
Janitorial expenses 
Others 

25.1 

6.1.4 
7 

993,233,677 769,032,681 
{125,751,382) {86,506,860) ------
867,482,295 682,525,821 

890,371,050 756,440,999 
316,089,5 77 156,400,766 

16,814,398 
157, 173,071 167,918,686 
22,594,495 17,087,514 
52,445,110 74,005,376 
54,280,995 45,867,981 
17,600,546 16,506,051 
6,150,261 3,682,720 

15,123,309 10,959,920 
7,066,986 5,525,321 
5,551,064 1,966,214 

1,544,446,464 1,273, 175,946 

25.1 This includes contribution of Rs. 37.831 million {2023: Rs. 32.178 million) to the staff provident fund. 

26 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Salaries and benefits 
Utilities, postage and communication 
Printing and stationery 
Depreciation on tangible assets 
Fee and subscription 
Legal and professional charges 
Shariah advisor fee 
Fuel, freight and transportation 
Auditors' remuneration 
Education and training 
Cleaning and maintenance 
IT related services 
Amortisation on intangible assets 
Other expenses 

26.1 

6.1.4 

26.2 

8 
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32,710,817 29,937,643 
1,462,381 1,998,393 
3,157,465 3,004,622 
1,239,243 1,823,934 
2,605,832 2,861,201 
3,034,408 3, 127,419 

681,878 693,774 
3,762,820 2,377,504 

720,500 657,500 
10,000 

1,780,268 1,013,433 
3,840,235 4,032,874 

56,501 
275,365 350,000 

55,271,212 51,944,798 
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26.1 This includes contribution of Rs. 1.892 million (2023: Rs. 1.633 million) to the staff provident. 

26.2 Auditors' Remuneration 

Annual fee 
Half yearly review fee 
Certification fee 
Out of pocket expenses 

27 OTHER EXPENSES 

Marketing expenses 
Realized exchange loss on foreign currency- net 

28 OTHER INCOME 

Gain on disposal of tangible assets - net 
Income on deposits with banks 
Income on term deposit receipts 
Unrealized exchange gain on foreign currency- net 
Realized exchange gain on foreign currency- net 

29 FINANCE COST 

Profit I Mark-up on: 

-diminishing musharaka financing 
- lease liabilities 

Bank charges 

30 MODARABA MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S FEE 

2024 
----- (Rupees) 

385,000 
192,500 
83,000 
60,000 

720,500 

233,000 

233,000 

3, 184,210 
9,929,657 

40,888,846 
363,694 

2,292,284 

56,658,691 

101,759,731 
17,370,620 

317,958 
119,448,309 

2023 

350,000 
175,000 
80,000 
52,500 

657,500 

55,000 
14,890,050 
14,945,050 

147,700 
9,946,670 

14,939,927 

25,034,297 

88,299,152 
3,701,310 

215,614 
92,216,076 

In accordance with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1981, the 
Modaraba has accrued management Company's fees at the rate of 10% of profit before levies and taxes 
during the year which is payable to the Modaraba Management Company amounting to Rs. 45.948 million 
(2023 Rs. 33.163 million). Furthermore, during the year, an amount of Rs. 5.97 million {2023 Rs. 4.311 million) at 
the rate of 13% was charged on account of sales tax on management fee levied under Sindh Sales Tax on 
Services Act, 2011. 
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2024 2023 
Note --------(Rupees) -------

31 LEVIES 

Levies - minimum taxes 31.1 34,527,755 1,909,499 

31.1 These represent provision for minimum tax under section 153 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The 
provision for minimum tax has been recognised as levies in these financial statements as per the requirements 
of IFRIC 21 I IAS 37 and guide on IAS 12 'Income taxes' issued by ICAP. 

32 TAXATION 

For the year 

Current 137,975,877 92,091,016 
Prior 102,828 
Deferred 8,432,556 6,769,122 

146,511,261 98,860,138 

32.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit 

Accounting profit before taxation (Rupees) 364,882, 138 286,361,686 

Tax rate(%) 29% 29% 

Tax on accounting profit 105,815,820 83,044,889 

Effect of: 

Super tax 23,653,007 8,590,851 
Levies 10,013,049 553,755 
Deferred tax effect 8,432,556 6,769,122 
Deductible expenses (61,437,903) (68, 151,726) 
Prior year charge 102,828 
Non-deductible expenses 59,931,904 68,053,247 
Tax charge as per accounts 146,511,261 98,860,138 

Effective tax rate 35% 32% 
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2024 2023 
Note --------(Rupees) -------

33 EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED 

33.1 Basic earnings per certificate 

Profit for the year (Rupees) 
Weighted average number of certificates outstanding 
during the year (Number) 

Earnings per certificate - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 

218,370,877 187,501,548 

75,000,000 75,000,000 

2.91 2.50 

33.2 There were no convertible dilutive potential ordinary certificates outstanding as on June 30, 2024 which 
have dilutive effect on earnings per certificate. 

34 REMUNERATION TO THE EXECUTIVES 

The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits to 
executives are given below: 

Particulars 
Remuneration 
Bonus 
House rent 
Vehicle 
Provident fund 
Medical 
Others 
Total 

Number of pereson 

35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

Trade debtors 
Unbilled revenue - contract assets 
Loans and other receivables 
Long term deposits 
Cash and bank balances 
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57,465,214 49,193,111 
6,727,400 7,480,693 

25,859,345 22,136,900 
13,132, 184 10,339,287 
5,746,968 4,826,149 
7,581,433 8,009,627 

606,000 515,050 
117,118,544 1 02,500,817 

26 21 

282,355, 128 237,873,784 
50,014,359 44,712,830 
12,519,375 17,474,429 
5,028,000 5,028,000 

256,426,656 246,423, 197 
606,343,518 551,512,240 
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

Diminishing musharaka financing 
Lease liabilities 

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 

Unclaimed dividend 

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

2024 2023 
------- (Rupees) ------

338,428,901 
85,116,665 

319,181,536 
332,570 

743,059,672 

508,856,469 
87,453,570 

196,302,094 
160,454 

792,772,587 

The Modaraba's objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of Certificate holders' value. Risk 

is inherent in the Modaraba's activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, 

measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of risk management is 

critical to the Modaraba's continuing profitability. The Modaraba is exposed to market risk (which includes 

profit rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the financial instruments it holds. 

The Board of Modaraba management Company primarily invests in assets used for ijarah business. Such 
investments are subject to varying degrees of risk, which emanate from various factors that include but are not 
limited to market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and operational risk. 

36. 1 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to 
changes in market variables such as profit rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The objective of 
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while 
optimizing the return. 

36. 1. 1 Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to 

transactions entered into foreign currencies. 

The modaraba's exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows: 

2024 2023 
-------(EURO) -----

Trade creditors 32,490 
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EURO to PKR 

Sensitivity analysis 

Average rate for 
the year 

2024 2023 

305.970 

Spot rate as of 
June30 

2024 2023 

297.686 

Every 10% increase in exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, would have the effect of 

decreasing or increasing profit before levies and taxation for the year by Rs. 0.967 million (2023: Rs. nil). 

36.1.2 Profit rate risk 

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in the market profit rates. The Modaraba has adopted appropriate policies to minimize its exposure 
to this risk. The profit rate profile of the Modaraba's significant profit bearing financial instruments and the 
periods in which these will mature are as follows: 

Flnanclal assets 
Cash and bank balances 
Long term deposits 
Loans and other receivable 
Trade debtors 
Unbilled revenue - contract assets 
Total financial assets 

Fin•ncial liabilities 
Diminishing Musharaka financing 
Lease liabilities 
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 
Unclaimed dividend 
Total financial liabilities 

Fin•nci•l •ssets 
Cash and bank balances 
Long term deposits 
Loans and other receivable 
Trade debtors 
Unbilled revenue - contract assets 
Total financial assets 

Fln11ncl11l ll11bllldes 
Diminishing Musharaka financing 
Lease liabilities 
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 
Unclaimed dividend 
Total financial liabilities 

Profit lllltes 

7%-10% 

16%-24.47% 
19.18%-23.71% 

Profttlllltes 

Carrying 
values 

256,426,656 
5,028,000 

12,519,375 
282,355, 128 

50,014,359 

606,343~18 

338,428,901 
85,116,665 

319,181,536 
332,570 

743,059,672 

Carrying 
values 

Lessthlln 1 
month 

247,467,381 

247,467,381 

10,535,848 
1,080,713 

11.616,561 

2024 
Exposed to yield I profit rate risk 

1-3 months 
3months-1 

yur 
(Rupees) 

1 yur·S 
yurs 

30,113,318 
2,684.677 

88.871, 139 208,908,596 
13.237,930 68, 113,345 

32,797,995 102,109,069 277,021,941 

2023 
Exposed to yield I proftt rate risk 

Less than 1 1 _ 
3 

months 3 months - 1 1 )'filr - 5 
month )'filr )'filrs 

(Rupees) 

5% - 796 246,423, 197 240,395,699 
5,028,000 

17,474.429 
237,873,784 
44,712,830 

551,512,240 240,395,699 

10.26% - 24.47% 508,856.469 34,524,500 78,556,582 63.853,389 331,921,998 
9.75%-19.18% 87,453,570 1,669,333 1,704,103 7,155,830 76,924,304 

196,302,094 

160.454 

792,772287 36,193,833 80,260~ 71.QQ2,219 408~302 
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Moreth•nS 
)'Hr5 

Morethan5 
years 

Not exposed to 
yield I profit risk 

rate 

8,959.275 
5,028.000 

12,519,375 
282,355,128 

50,014,359 

358,876,137 

319,181,536 
332,570 

319,514,106 

Not exposed to 
yield I profit risk 

rate 

6,027.498 
5,028.000 

17.474,429 
237,873,784 

44,712.830 
311,116,541 

196,302,()94 
160,454 

196,462248 
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Profit rate sensitivity analysis for variable rate 

A change of 100 basis points in profit rates at the reporting date would have decreased I (increased) profit for 

the year by Rs. 509,412 (2023: Rs. 634,126). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign 

currency rates, remain constant. 

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and assets I 
liabilities of the Modaraba. 

36.2 Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Modaraba if the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 

its contractual obligations. The risk is generally limited to principal amounts and accrued profit thereon, if any. 

The Modaraba's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the profit risk management 

policies and the requirements of the Modaraba Rules and Regulations. The carrying amount of respective 

financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure at the reporting date. 

Trade debtors 

Unbilled revenue - contract assets 

Loans and other receivables 

Long term deposits 

Bank balances 

2024 2023 
------- (Rupees) -----

282,355, 128 237,873,784 

50,014,359 44,712,830 

12,519,375 17,474,429 

5,028,000 5,028,000 

256,206,057 245,766,565 

606, 122,919 550,855,608 

The credit quality of receivable can be assessed with reference to their historical performance with negligible 

defaults in recent history. 

The trade debtors are due from local customers. Management assesses the credit quality of local taking into 

account their financial position, past experience and other factors. The ageing of trade debtors at the year-end 

was as follows: 

Not past due 

Past due 0 days - 90 days 

Past due 90 days - 180 days 

Past due within 180 to 360 days 

Past due by 360 days 

Allowance for impairment on financial assets 

Credit risk related to cash deposits 

214,012,523 148,588,660 

83,463,406 87,317,662 

5,721,957 19,996,418 

3,582,209 5,636,885 

5,583,663 6,342,789 

312,363,758 267,882,414 

(30,008,630) (30,008,630) -----------------282, 355, 128 237,873,784 

The credit risk on liquid funds (bank balances) is limited because the counter parties are banks with a reasonably 
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36.3 

high credit rating. The names and credit rating of major banks where the Modaraba maintains its bank balances 
are as follows: 

Credit rating 

Name of Bank Rating Agency Long-term Short-term 

Bank Isla mi Limited PACRA AA- A-1 
Habib Bank Limited VIS AAA A-1+ 
National Bank of Pakistan Limited VIS AAA A-1+ 
MCB Islamic Bank Limited PACRA A+ A-1 
Askari Bank Limited PACRA AA+ A-1+ 
Bank of Khyber Limited VIS A+ A-1 
Meezan Bank Limited VIS AAA A-1+ 
Faysal Bank Limited VIS AA A-1+ 

Liquidity risk management 

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Modaraba will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated 
with financial liabilities. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Modaraba could be required to pay 
its liabilities earlier than expected. 

The Modaraba's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressful conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Modaraba's reputation. The table below summarizes the maturity 
profile of the Modaraba's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

36.3. 1 Llqu idity and profit risk table 

The following tables detail the Modaraba's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial 
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on 
the earliest date on which the Modaraba can be required to pay. 

2024 

Profit rates 
Carrying Contractual 

Upto 1 years 2toSyears 
MorethanS 

Values Cash Flows years 

(Rupees)-

Diminishing Musharaka financing 16%-24.47% 338,428,901 458,800,052 190,535,767 268,264,285 
Lease liabilities 19.18%-23.71% 85,116,665 1 18,898, 129 15,678,847 103,219,282 
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 319,181,536 319,181,536 319,181,536 
Unclaimed dividend 332,570 332,570 332,570 

743,059,672 897,212,287 525,728,720 371,483,567 
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Profit rates 
carrying 
Values 

Diminishing Musharaka financing 10.26%- 24.47% 508,856,469 
Lease liabilities 9.75% -19. 18% 87,453,570 
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 196,302,094 
Unclaimed dividend 160,454 

792,772,587 

Contractual 
Cash Flows 

751,858,668 
133,516,569 
1 96,302,094 

160,454 

2023 

Upto 1 years 2 to 5 years 

(Rupees)-

286,039,915 
26,296,740 

196,302,094 
160,454 

465,818,753 
107,219,829 

1,081,837,785 508,799,203 573,038,582 

The effective rate of profit on non-derivative financial liabilities are disclosed in respective notes. 

36.3.2 Price risk 

Morethan5 
years 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of 
changes in market prices (other than those arising from profit rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes 
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar 
financial instruments traded in the market. The Modaraba, at present, is not exposed to price risk. 

36.4 Operational risk 

Operational risk is the potential for loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes and systems, 
human error, or from impact of external events (including legal risks). Operational risk is inherent in the 
Modaraba's activities and, as with the other risk types, is managed through an overall framework with checks 
and balances that includes recognized ownership of the risk by the businesses, independent risk management 
oversight and an independent review by the Internal Audit. 

The Modaraba considers the over a 11 operati ona I risk by breaking it down into different sub-components I a re as 
called as operational risk sub-types under which operational risks are identified. The overall operational risk 
management responsibilities lie with the Operational Risk department. For the identified operational risks, 
operational risk control owners are put in place and made responsible for performance of checks and testing of 
identified controls in their areas and reporting of the same to the operation a I risk department which reports any 
exception or deviation to the Operational Risk Committee where corrective and preventive actions are taken. 

37 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Modaraba's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Modaraba's ability to continue as a 
going concern so that it can continue to provide optimum returns to its certificate holders' and benefits ofother 
stake holders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its businesses. The 
Modaraba manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the 
light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Modaraba may 
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adjust the amount of profit paid to certificate holders or issue new certificates. The Modaraba is not subject to 
externally imposed capital requirements. 

Consistent with others in the industry, the Modaraba monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.This ratio 
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings {including 'current 
and non-current borrowings' as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. 
Total capital is calculated as'equity'as shown in the statement of financial position plus net debt. 

The gearing ratios at June 30, 2024 and 2023 were as follows: 

2024 2023 
Note --------(Rupees)---------

Total borrowings 
Less: cash and bank balances 
Net debt 
Total equity 
Total capital 
Gearing ratio 

38 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

18 
15 

338,428,901 
(256,426,656) 

82,002,245 
1,396,624,535 
1,478,626,780 

6% 

508,856,469 
(246,423, 197) 
262,433,272 

1,253,253,658 
1,515,686,930 

17% 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. 

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Modaraba is a going concern and there is no 
intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse 
terms. 

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly 
available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices 
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. 

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Modaraba to classify fair value measurements and fair value 
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements of fair value hierarchy has 
the following levels: 

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset either directly 
that is, derived from prices. 
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- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unadjusted) 
inputs. 

As at year ended June 30, 2024, the Modaraba does not hold any financial asset or liability measured at fair value. 
Further, carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements approximate 
their fair value. 

39 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASHFLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

The table below states changes in the Modaraba's liabilities arising from financing activities, including cash 
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or 
future cash flows will be, classified in the Modaraba's statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing 
activities. 

Diminishing musharaka financing 
Unclaimed dividend 
Lease liabilities 

Diminishing musharaka financing 
Unclaimed dividend 
Lease liabilities 

June 30, 2023 
Financing 

cash inflows 
Financing 

cash oudlows 
Non cash 
changes 

June 30, 2024 

---------------------(Rupees)----------------------· 

508,856,469 
160,454 

87,453,570 
596,470,493 

June 30, 2022 Financing 
cash inflows 

(170,427,568) 
(74,827,884) 75,000,000 
(29,346,740) 27,009,835 ___ ..;...._....;...._ 

(274,602, 192) 102,009,835 

Financing 
cash oudlows 

Non cash 
changes 

338,428,901 
332,570 

85,116,665 
423,878,136 

June 30, 2023 

-------------------------(Rupees)-------------------------· 

431,047,425 
161,844 

16,086,149 
447,295,418 

340,000,000 

340,000,000 

(262, 190, 956) 
(1,390) 

( 19,531,644) 90,899,065 ___ ..;...._....;...._ 

(281,723,990) 90,899,065 

508,856,469 
160,454 

87,453,570 
596,470,493 

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise 
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions and include a 
Subsidiary Company, Modaraba Management Company, Associated Companies with or without common 
directors, retirement benefit funds, directors, and key management personnel. 
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40.1 

The Modaraba has related party relationship with its Modaraba Management Company, Associated 

Undertakings, Employee Benefit Plans, and its Key Management Personnel. 

A number of transactions are entered into with related parties at agreed terms as approved by the Board of 

Directors of Modaraba Management Company in the normal course of business. These include purchase of 

assets and sharing of common expenses, if any. 

The detail of transactions with related parties and balances with them is given below: 

Company 

ASJN Holdings (Private) Limited 
EMAN Management (Private) Limited 

Basis of 
Assoclatlon 

Parent Company 
Associated Company 

Aggregate Percentage of 
shareholding 

6.67% 
10% 

Associate Company incorporate outside Pakistan 

Company Name Country of Incorporation Registered address 

Orient Energy Systems FZCO United Arab Emirates Free Zone, Dubai, United Arab Emirates 

Transactions during the year 
2024 2023 

N11me 11nd Rel11tionship with the Mod11r11b11 B.asis of Relation! N11ture of tr11nS11ctions ·----(Rupees)----

Orient Energy Systems (Private) Limited - Common Purchase I overhauling of: 
Associated companies directorship - - generators 10,000,000 20,000,000 

associated - stores, spares and loose tools 261,002,328 111,708,069 
Company Service and maintenance charges 17,723,126 8,591,4-07 

Rental for generators 2,051,224 1,051,960 
Operation and maintenance service 20,860,000 26,390,000 
Payment made 236,940,735 361,626,448 
Payment received 20,128,786 49,824,172 

ASJN Holdings (Private) Limited Common Dividend paid 5,000,000 
directorship -
Ultimate Parent 
Company 

Employees' Provident Fund Trust Associated Contribution for the year 39,722,873 33,812,714 
Company 

Payment made 31,222,995 33,812,714 

Orient Energy Systems FZCO Common Purchase of stores, spares and loose tools 61,028,554 
directorship - Payment made 51,356,737 
associated 
Company 

Modaraba Management Company Common Management fees 45,948,266 33,162,827 
Eman Management (Private) Limited directorship - Payment made 33,162,827 32,322,033 

associated Dividend paid 7,500,000 
Company 

Directors Dividend paid 18,790,034 
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40.2 Year end balances 

Relationship with the Modaraba 

Associated company 
Orient Energy Systems (Private) Limited 

ASJN Holdings (Private) Limited 

Employees' Provident Fund Trust 

Orient Energy Systems FZCO 

Modaraba Management Company 
Eman Management (Private) Limited 

Directors 

41 SEGMENT INFORMATION 

Nature of transactions 

Payable against purchase of tangible 
assets, spares and loose tools and 
service maintenance charges 
Accrual 

Receivable against services rendered 

Outstanding certificates 
5,000,000 (June 30,2023: 5,000,000) 

Contribution Payable 

Payable against purchase of 
stores, spares and loose tools 

Management fee payable 
Outstanding certificates 
7,500,000 (June 30, 2023: 7,500,000) 

Outstanding certificates 
18,790,034 (June 30,2023: 12,540,034) 

2024 2023 
----(Rupees)----

130,033,809 78,249,090 

16,739,944 16,739,944 

9,204,438 6,422,000 

50,000,000 50,000,000 

8,499,878 

9,671,817 

45,948,266 33,162,827 

75,000,000 75,000,000 

187,900,340 125,400,340 

As per IFRS 8/0perating Segments~ Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal 
reporting used by the chief operating decision-maker. The Chief Executive Officer of the Management 
Company has been identified as the chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating 
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. 

The Madara ba has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Chief Executive 
Officer, which are used to make strategic decisions. 

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Modaraba's entire product portfolio and considers the 
business to have two operating segments. The Modaraba's asset allocation decisions are based on an 
integrated investment strategy. The Modaraba's performance is evaluated on the basis of two operating 
segments. 

The internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive Officer for the Modaraba's assets, liabilities and 
performance is prepared on a consistent basis with the measurement and recognition principles of approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. 
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The Modaraba's operating segments consists of rental business (operating lease) and maintenance 
business (operation and maintenance income).There were no changes in the reportable segments during the 
year. The Modaraba is domiciled in Pakistan. All of the Modaraba's income is from entities incorporated in 
Pakistan. 

The Modaraba has a diversified product portfolio whereby resources have been allocated. 

Details of segment revenues, costs, profit, assets and liabilities are as follows: 

ljarah rentals Operation and Total 
maintenance 

·-------------(Rupees)------------· 

Segments revenues I profits 
For the year ended June 30, 2024 
Revenue 
Costs 

Reporting segment profit 

Segments revenues I profits 
For the year ended June 30, 2023 
Revenue 
Costs 
Reportable segment profit 

1,254,740,655 
(973,987,080) 
280,753,575 

1,079,276,419 
(840,546,593) 
238,729,826 

Reconciliation of segment wise results with profit before tax is as under: 

Total results for reportable segments 
Other non-operating income 
Marketing and administrative expenses 
Finance costs 
Other non-operating expenses 
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867,482,295 
(689,822,735) 
177,659,560 

682,525,821 
(547,671,783) 
134,854,038 

2024 

2, 122,222, 95 0 
(1,663,809,815) 

458,413,135 

1,761,802,240 
(1,388,218,376) 

373,583,864 

2023 
-----(Rupees)-----

458,413, 135 373,583,864 
56,658,691 24,934,297 

(55,271,212) (66,889,848) 
(317,958) (215,614) 

(60,072,763) (43, 141,514) ------
399,409,893 288,271, 185 
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Segment assets / liabilities 
Operation and 

Total ljarah rentals 
maintenance 

----------------(Rupees)-------------· 

As at June 30, 2024 
Segment assets 1,634,589,759 229, 179,965 1,863,769,724 

Segment liabilities 698, 183,059 12,108,617 710,291,676 

As at June 30, 2023 
Segment assets 1,537,185,434 127,211,509 1,664,396,943 

Segment liabilities 716,693,829 12,555,819 729,249,648 

Reconciliation of segment assets and liabilities with total assets and liabilities in the Statement of Financial 
Position is as under; 

Total for reportable segment assets 
Unallocated assets 
Total assets as per statement offinancial position 

Total for reportable segment liabilities 
Unallocated liabilities 
Total liabilities as per financial position 

42 DISCLOSURE OF COMPANIES LISTED IN ISLAMIC INDEX 

Loans I advances obtained as per Islamic mode: 
Loans 
Advances 

Shariah compliant bank deposits I bank balances 

Profit earned from shariah compliant bank deposits I bank balances 

Revenue earned from a shariah compliant business 

Gain I (loss) or dividend earned from shariah compliant investments 
Dividend income 

Gain on sale of investments 
(Loss) I gain on remeasurement of investments at fair value through 
profit or loss 

Exchange loss 

Profit paid on Islamic mode of financing 
Profits earned or profit paid on any conventional loan or advance 

Profit paid on loans 
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2024 2023 
------(Rupees)-------

1,863,769,724 
467,754,598 

2,331,524,322 

710,291,676 
224,608, 111 
934,899,787 

338,428,901 

338,428,901 

256,206,057 

50,818,503 

2, 122,222,950 

363,694 

1 01,897,802 

1,664,396,943 
520,017,637 

2, 184,414,580 

729,249,648 
201,911,274 
931, 160,922 

508,856,469 

508,856,469 

245,766,565 

24,886,597 

1,761,802,240 

(14,890,050) 

75,205,502 
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43 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 

The Board of Directors of the Modaraba Management Company in their meeting held on September 20, 2024 
have approved profit distribution at the rate of 12% i.e Rs. 1.20 per certificate. 

44 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE 

These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 20, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the 
Eman Management (Private) Limited. 

45 CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

46 

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the purpose of 
comparison and for better presentation. 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 

Number of employees 

- At June 30 
- Average during the year 

5f/j IJ 

For Eman Management (Private) Limited 
(Modaraba Management Company) 

---rf uotfwit 

2024 

1.400 
1,348 

2023 

1,296 
1,322 

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director Director 
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PATTERN OF CERTIFICATE HOLDING 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024 

categories of certificate holders Certificateholders Certificate Held 

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children 

NASIMAHMED 1 6,250,000 

CHAUDHRY JAWAID IQBAL 1 6,250,000 

AZHAR IQBAL 1 6,250,000 

TEIZOON KISAT 1 40,034 

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 

ASJN HOLDINGS (PVT.) LIMITED 1 5,000,000 

EMAN MANAGEMENT (PVT.) LIMITED 1 7,500,000 

Banks, development finance Institutions, non-banking finance companies, 

insurance companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds 1 6,638,953 

General Public 630 35,382,435 

Others 2 1,688,578 

Totals 639 75,000,000 

Certificate holders holding 5% or more Certificate Held 

EMAN MANAGEMENT (PVT.) LIMITED 7,500,000 

MEEZAN BANK LIMITED 6,638,953 

MOHAMMAD SAEED 6,250,000 

NASIMAHMED 6,250,000 

CHAUDHRY JAWAID IQBAL 6,250,000 

AZHARIQBAL 6,250,000 

ASJN HOLDINGS (PVT.) LIMITED 5,000,000 
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Percentage 

8.33% 

8.33% 

8.33% 

0.05% 

6.67% 

10.00% 

8.85% 

47.18% 

2.25% 

100.00% 

Percentage 

10.00% 

8.85% 

8.33% 

8.33% 

8.33% 

8.33% 

6.67% 
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PATTERN OF CERTIFICATE HOLDING 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024 

Number of Certificate holders Certificate Holdings Total Certificate Held 

58 to 100 573 
123 101 to 500 55,578 

63 501 to 1000 61,844 
210 1001 to 5000 529,532 
72 5001 to 10000 492,142 
32 10001 to 15000 384,144 

7 15001 to 20000 122,245 
13 20001 to 25000 273,656 
3 25001 to 30000 85,189 
4 30001 to 35000 133,886 
4 35001 to 40000 144,424 
3 40001 to 45000 120,102 
7 45001 to 50000 326,863 

50001 to 55000 53,379 
4 65001 to 70000 268,669 

70001 to 75000 72,525 
2 90001 to 100000 188,500 

125001 to 130000 128,446 
180001 to 190000 180,991 
265001 to 270000 266,893 

4 290001 to 300000 1,200,000 
400001 to 405000 400,339 

5 1000001 to 1005000 5,004,235 
1090001 to 1095000 1,090,432 

2 1200001 to 1205000 2,402,034 
1230001 to 1235000 1,231,017 
1330001 to 1335000 1,334,463 
1400001 to 1405000 1,401,186 
1430001 to 1435000 1,434,325 
1495001 to 1500000 1,499,186 
1630001 to 1635000 1,633,856 
1665001 to 1670000 1,668,079 

2 3335001 to 3340000 6,672,314 
4995001 to 5000000 5,000,000 

4 6245001 to 6250000 25,000,000 
6635001 to 6640000 6,638,953 
7495001 to 7500000 715001000 

639 75,000,000 
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i:.-(r ;~Lo,iJC)11j....( /..1JltJ.1~ ti:,, ~JlvtJ~I i(rt.1Jl.~U.::::...~(r J'_;.1 ~t t.n->! { i:.-(r ;~I~ 4 ti:,,~ .J8~.1JI 
-~lrV'f .:::...(li:.-~..i8LL.nDPtJt.1JIL.f;ij~ift-~ f!t£.cff1V-i:.-(r~~ J:IV./.J 
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.Q.~,~ 
FOCUSED ON SOLUTIONS 

Ju.11 a%i./.u.n11:t4-iPLJv~~~L~1.i1LJ4'.1J1,.1t1,;L~21f;rfL~1"Ju.1(./.u.n11~JJv 
_i.,(Lf .... 

~~ J' J.k.~{ u,!t rJI U.A.!JJ(./. ~~1J1.£Jv~-t.nJU.16.4%J?.J~ LJfy.1JI Vi-Cv:. JJPl~~l}t oUVI 

-liJ~D.11,.? (~J.IJ-14.9v!~~~J')C-(./. J!. IJI 

_1.n~~J't1;>{~JiJ'ui~1.1JrJ.1~L/'5x~vLuh{.1}JJ~Ju.ri.1-J""tl 

,L~J.1J'11.4~~1J1JLLb!Jl~IJ,idi./.Jvu?.Y'~-~~,.fU:~/5.1~/-.?-';-li./.2023~L~.1l.-V 
hx~'-J.1J-aa.3L2023r.;J?.~lvl}IJLL,.J;~J.n~..J)i.Jv,J-L'-J)J-3.17..1!vLJv~..$ ., . ., ., ., 
170.4,i.f.C...1!vLJv'-.1ieJ?.Y~LL /o~J"lvi./.'5'i;.:.,i.Jv,JJ'Jv~ :lf.!.n'-J.1J-1o1.Bi./.JvoJ?.Y ., ., / ., 

_1.n,JUl.1}()°J7.~{ J''-J.1J' ., 

_J'v.f~.1J/J'r.;J{J{J~1?,.Lu,; jJ~ J'£1.nv;fr.;J~J4ui~1JL 

J~i.1-~LLu.1u~1.1i.1-J""i.;JJv_(~J.1J' 1oo.a:2023r.;Jr.)J'~J.1J'1 a1.o?~J'v2'?-LJv 
{.1}LvP.'f ~fvP.'J..tJ.nJJ{Jj'1jJ'~L.»dL 153~u7/.~/-li3%Jv~_$,1.nc...1r~~l...?L6% 
Jvt!f _$ rl.n~J.1J' 218.4 t~ ~IP! ?,.LJv '~ -liDJ~) 30% ~ vP.~.1{.1((~?. rliV°~C...1f 

-li'-'.1J' 1 a1 .so ., 
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.Q.~,~ 
FOCUSED ON SOLUTIONS 

J~7J='';--J.1100,00011lf~~LJcf!,/l#L1JJ ... 1~J='l)~-7vdc.1~1J/ru.1~~.::::...~JLfJYJ 
¥ Lr.,,z J.-.11~;-lf~vi,l.-.ld r:,,J1,,r ~1jr.11J,,rt~if.,7~.1~tf ~i..-rJ.J~;.::::...~J J.--iJ:. ;)"' 

-L~·l1JJ-.:..li.::::...;J!·tL,;.1J'-J...;,!-'" ,;. ~I jl.1rJ11l~Jl~~thi./-.:..Ll;rJJ~ • \,? • • v .. v-t.,,/7*J '/ ~ y \' • 

~JJAi:t-7u.1r=vif~J~J1J'-1!'-.1t,;J.11f~Jif.,7J!foJf.Jr""v!~~5rr~;;°'.1J--?.1i; 
-~.1~(-.:..1/1LJ(;iJJ.Jf.JJlci.:,.,Jlf J'LJ.1c5r.,,i.7.Jt•IJ:.lJ;lJ'u'P.IJ~ ' , ... 

2024_?.1ar.7r1;1u_2~,(Lf11.s3Lf f J,{ 200 bps/~.1~ ~11;1,.d~rc.1t:.f~._;1~wr 
.::::... if.,7 e :;J LYf f diJ J,I. J Lh~J.1(.::::... J J:. ~.I~~ -7 tfJIJ II.I ~J)/ ~ ~ ( u'-'Yl /Y..:::... 

_JyrJ1;i1,..i..,.rJ ~)~~{1 ';-1/l)J.J ~J.1( 

L J; J..J1J.JrF1(J?"':.'"1J J?.Y-t.f-.:..i:.. Ji'-7. ~'-"! t.f '-.1i.:-h::~~£"?fr-71JrjJ,~t~u)i;51{ .1JJ,I. 

'7c:C~ tf ~ lr (fa~ .:::...JJ:..1;J ~hJll)JJ'"'UJi;51J ~f ~A."'.1Jll)J.1 ~J.1(c('t-_(yr ~-.:..~~I C:!r?.. 
-7f J1JJ:.>..i-.:..hJtJW.rJ:.diJ~{r.::::...~Sif. 

,.,.1~ _(LJ.1i:/-' 1, 761.80:2023C)?. )~JU20.4%,J:.LiPLJlr~ .f.J?. ,if~J.1J'2, 122.22J.-.1J,I. • y .. • y 

( J;u1,(i,,J~;27 .1 % J:.4-iPLJlr~ I ,.P (if.,J'ft ~Jl~{1-7Ji:..J:. Lw.1u1¢J'.1~J.1((liL 
-~.1j'.)Jt;. 

~J~J-.!:.oJ~J21.3%J:.4-iPL';--J.li:! 1,273.17LJlr~?.c.!:.';--J.li:!1,544.45-.:..(rl}l~{l 
_1J'i;w.1=t.f .:::...~SL w.1J:.-::..l J uJ;{ Lr,LJ'iJ~r?..L ~uV.>..,r-.!:.,¢·r Jc?Jfar /f.-.:..1rrJ1 
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.Q.~,~ 
FOCUSED ON SOLUTIONS 

153,493,340 

(37,500,310) 

303,494,578 

2.50 

16.71 

303,494,578 

(43,674, 175) 

(75,000,000) 

403, 191,280 

2.91 

18.62 

>r;.::;...;t :It iv-,,~,f_i 
!' ~'-jjj)G"J tiv-203efJv 

'~~ 2023~?.30..fGJvLt~tiv­
~ /J(Nil:2022~?.30 ..fGJv )~J.11.0 

i.f~Lr,ti;..,f_i 

uh/'L+::/f?.,/.11JU.l(2.4%J/~,;-v;S GDPJJ~2023-24JvJL,J.~L'-vJ~L~i::.r~ 

~s ~~L ~ 2024-25JvJLf ~ s JI J..;L c1MF) z; Jl.JL tJ1Jv1~_tf f v./1.1i /._;). L3.5% 
~ ' .. y ' 

StJ~J~=.1,rlii.f V'~~,~~~1v(if.7NJ~.::;...J1 L3.6% L~~~ +::/f JI J..;=_JLxJ 3.5% 

-7f S~;:--i.ALrJ,.1~ 

,;J GDP ~7tf ~/~ # (u~/J1F1JL-IJ.t v(pS J!i.1~JJt.:.-L~s~~~:\;:.1i;.1JrJL?L~ i::.r~ 
tJ,1.~$\}f 1.11lf1~71j1~_y~;1itJ,~~~~Ji_v.r r.1/Jiv/c).1~.V:,1u,.1~'.1(;~)LJ4'.1,17,,A" 

-~!;;Y.J )J Jv. 
' 

Jf.L-.-,At--~t JJu ¥-J~~1.1,1Jv.1J='~..t.A,. c.?.~~1v~,~(.:.-L1;r0f/if.,~1.n~iv~ .. ~-b£.::;...~1.1; y I ' '/r .. I.I" ' ' .. 

=~r~ !Ji;t,fJ,.P ~ ~L.ti1£SL5tJ.t.-7JJA J;J¢1.11~~L fa JYrL.1JILJ),(J~~ 
v.rlSrlJLf~;1?/~~.1jLLt.P1v!j_.rh.1,1v(7t-J~.t~SrJJ:'v!4-~LJSJv~ 

-7Pr7.~lflf1,,)..J·JyL1.n~7.~ 

-IJ.t J?.Y°~~J.::;...~?. 'rrJJ--?i{ Ll;;1.;_),JY°;t,1L1{ LL) 6~_r.::;...~( .. cvJ~2024JJc; 
~e1.1julf..1,17~rJ~,~,u~;.::;.....,...,..(~.r.,7S..t~-v; 3so/o,,JV.::;...,,,~;J'J(r{J#.11Jor.fL+::/f 
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.Q.~,~ 
FOCUSED ON SOLUTIONS 

JL..JLL ... .11.P ;}f;1;J1 J.1i. L<'t:JL!,,,)~C~i1.1)~L:.JL!' Jf' ~S c.:...11.P,,),.,.11.PJf.1~.1'' .. . ., . . 

2023L:)?. 

1,761,802,240 

(1,273, 175,946) 

488,626,294 

(51,944, 798) 

(14,945,050) 

25,034,297 

(92,216,076) 

(22,926,402) 

331,628,265 

(33,162,827) 

(4,311, 168) 

(5,883,085) 

288,271, 185 

(1,909,499) 

286,361,686 

(98,860, 138) 

187 ,501,548 

-\1.t 'f--'f v_,,.IJ}Lyr L.f JJ2024L:)?.30 ?JL---JLLIJ.~ ~l? 

2024L:.J?. 

2, 122,222,950 

{1,544,446,464) 

577,776,486 

(55,271,212) 

(233,000) 

56,658,691 

(119,448,309) 

459,482,656 

(45,948,266) 

(5,973,275) 

{8, 151,222) 

399,409,893 

(34,527' 755) 

364,882, 138 

(146,511,261) 

218,370,877 

Annua1Report2024 

j_...1 

~~1J1L~.11 . -" 
ti.;.iJ/. 

~~1JrL~L.1,1(.)IJV1 
• 

~1j1.£ 
# • 
~ 

j .... tl 
diJJL..JL .. 

L:.J~ ..... ~~;~1jl)L " . .. 
i.JdJ,Jei.;. 
i.JSJf'~.11.P 

L:)~"{(Jf:_;i.Jd 
L:.J{"{#"J:i r,;.h,~k­

~,,~vA1Jei.;. 
;-f{J .... r 

J-;,Jei.;. 
J-

J-; I.Ao'! e i,;. 



.Q.~,~ 
FOCUSED ON SOLUTIONS 

; .s,~/j-"'1 J';.1Jl.t1~1L-:-.1~ j.1J.-Lv_: f~~.1J °d 1~J.1~'.1(Lv! ref ~ji~J"v!.1~'.1( r"'4':.-L.t1 

-~t-;;J~r(tr7~1LLf 
' y 

-T-0~4':.-Jv":"'k>~,1...f14.1~Jr.,~LfaJ4':.-~~~J',IP{.1''(7~1A~/-..f'L(.),f1 

(;)~4':.-(.)iif J'J)ef JvvC1 }(1,.1,1J-"''(;)'~L~Jl!.-1(;)i::f'~.1,1 (;)i::f'~....;1~~~1J.1k,-:-.1~.1!}·vv! 
-(.)'1 

.1,1(;),~.1,.. .tfr_r_(,).tfl:"JIJ,,.,PJ!r;~Lk.1,uhcJ.1J1.t1 i. cr!!.cJJU,,cJJ{JV.;.1J1.t1~'rv~vt~u'· "' v· ., .. '/ . ., ~ " .. " " v-

-=..ft(L.t1 p~(i'Lr'--.1ln-v.t L.h;JJJ'(7~L'-:t1(i.1''T-J¥-J'~k>(J.1ln'.f'J',IP 
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J~t~JlrU/J~ 
cf.% 

2024/.20 



.Q.~,~ 
FOCUSED ON SOLUTIONS 

GDPJ~~L-~i.j)J1i./_,,.JJ}LJ1LfJ..;,;t1i,(2024~?.30?JlrL1/.,JJ;'(J_).)1'Jf)~...;JI~ ,. ' . . 
if.,.:r-(~1);_p1.t.v!,;i.1r-.:r-)l11(ufi-v~L1v!4-~Lt;(S o.21%JJL.--~J?.S1)~.1,;2.4%L 

..:.-lv~1Jlrv!2024-25JL.--JL0J?.Y°-i.f'.11.21 %v}J,;v!..:.-1r~L..:.-L~.1JI~ ,8rJ1)1.-"1(6.25%v! 

i.J.1t.J:1 ~~1rS1).{~£1L1MF-7(JJIJ..;S <:.i}J 3.6%i..L,;.;,~JJWi11.}!.11J1~J);.1J1.;~L 
_JL~)(;L,--f..:.-v1vefh-t/..1Jl~;i°f '1-1L..{~,.Xo.1PJ~J(JJ:i~lu,i..--LJ1j 

..:.-JJA1,j_V'~1i,;w,1.11>!:-(20%1.)!j..,,1L~A,.ui.J!f='°~LJLr-J.?'Jv.r:-J/Jlri.t~1)JJLJlrvh 

LJlr~ ».1J11.1~.11;-'"~21 ae ~~1~_7,J~)38% v!4-~LJlr~ »-r.11;-J.1~399e~~~,1 
S,/-JJJJ1JJ~<:.i}J 9%.;v.J.t1J1/S4A,.Vi.)!~LLJ"1)J..:.-L~~...;1rS~)~-f--'JV16%1.)!4-~ 

.1#.,/-:.;j(l~~,e~~OJ~L~r~J'..tJJ1JJ-JJ1jY 
~ ' 

,::JJJ-,,<tt.~;;t,-:}ltT.1JILJ1~.1r';-')~ 34.Sv!..1oJ..:.-V~7,/-(~~J,{7t-!V'~.1r"..:.-JJ_,.J" 
i.1riJ(S 4% SJ- {..:.-L~/ J('1)~...;1r ~A . .V-7{l.,)LJ,A,,~;~.r. J iJ. fJl45% J'L~.1~~ 

_JJ1~ rLw,11.)!j..,,1 J))JJJ1~J,~{)} jyL,J;S~ 

L2023.r.70J:t./.S?e~L~/J<;-,.11.2L;}f;1;_;n.1.t'{J~J~;{jYLJJl.,1&CtL2024 
-~oJLJ2%1.)!L~L~e~ ' - . 

Ji.tdiJJyL_;/,.;£.livJ=' 11.s%~v4'-t~2oov!~"~~~~f s~~~_;1~w,.;i)d. 
;,~/~ J{o)a I.)! ..:.-!~0°AJ.1(0J?.Y°?. JJ1)t_,..,,i]!i.)! ~ii.)!,-1}~.1{ L ..:.-!.=~ro,.r.Y° .J. JJ1~Jlrv! LV 

J! L~)~)'?-.1-70°Jo.1PJ.::,,k: ;v! ~'{ L~.1~L;}f;1;_;1;).r. v! ~l.1JJLJL.--_JJ1~ '( Lf 
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.Q.~,~ 
FOCUSED ON SOLUTIONS 

-:Lu?.(LJ,)J!.1)1J)~iJf#iL;)JJJ'l;P-t,jl--:)Vvr..t~)~sLJ'{J"t~LJ'{~~~s~~(1~ 

-v.41)~)!}-V~'-.Jlt?~l¥~L)P~?-Ju11Sctir1j~L)P 

JyLo~~;r/;;{2014/. 08-:/.787(1 )/2014Jf)f J-1 L ("SECP")t,j~~ ..JI Ji'~~' :)..1K 

;)lJJ"l~ /?.'J.1/-T--iJJ~J'f1J'LfJv.11~iJ1~)~/;.1lJYt~ /~1t,,tJJ,1if kof'f~vve'-)'?/ 

./~ V~J S....-)Vv )~)G (UP l,;,.1f ~ ~l}.1J~ t,jltL)J'l Z:... ~ ~fJ~J~ J'I~ .1J. ~.Ji )~vvS_...1VvoP r 
~ • • ,. ' ' ,, .. • 'Y • 

-\/.JI/.£!}--?)~'--' lt?)JIV.: f~ ('f---:--P"J 

{https://www.orientmodarabad.com/investors ~v~Jif--:.1i.;v~)JJJ:~iiJo~rJ/.L--:)Vv 

/Lf~~J:~ijo~rJ/.';-1f'f--J'fJ'~1.f/t,:}f,4.)J'l~br6~ijl;;l~~J!~.1lJJ'l~/?.-4f--~P"J 
L2011d1f-i,Lvt)o~{~-f~/aJ~;~Jv~J:~tjr._v.f~r.1~.1!f-?.1~'-"1t1¥~L)PJ 

-LJ! 'f~J,f 6~~L~!JGJdL244(2)Jf 
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.Q.~,~ 
FOCUSED ON SOLUTIONS 

.iivLL.IJv.A/;-1..tJ11~ /2024c.Jr.ao .:$JvL1/.~-1.t-1.;vv~'-'S 22ac1>~L2011 d1f.:[ 
_ J Ll.?\)'1./J-11.?u-/ ~ v~' J:,-1 i;,-.iiv 

• • 'Y • • 

jYJ'~..fl!.f'J'{?J'~-U~ .o 

-SL!S~lt/J.n:1-11JY JJ-(r{J! /11J)4tl:JL 150~L2001 ~j-' rJ-(i 

15% vJSJ-~1)1J~v!~JJL.J,-''!J-JLJ ca> 
aoo/o lt/SJ~1)1J~.;v!~JJL.J,-''!JJLJ Cb> 

~?fpJ}~tj-1,1(L!i;.-JLJ,i~JLJDLDLh.iJ11~/A'v!~-1y#JL11~~(rJ-1Jji.f/,}Jfp 

,L~-1y#\J'IL1,,..,(L!V'~-·O\.J1~~~L.Jl..fL~/1?.Y\/~L-1.ilYi~}Ad'(i.f'.JL!J JY 
vJJJ-;11 V~1.!r1)~ ~ J.UvL; j-'~-'L-'!.P--' ?-'--'~ ~~ (~1r.J'"v~ Lu )-1.il11~;~ 
/';-luf7~l}-11~C)lcVJf?v!J-1\)'j(f/,d)~/Li:f;-1.ilYi~/U-SL!Slv~~~» 

fyy~~(rfi.i1!.fJJ!.f I ~}';-1~t!.P--1?-'--'~cJ,j)t,JJb1Jv1v!~-1y#SJ..-iu"'v!~~L~ 
_g! J,.:.d~Jv!j-'~-''i-'lt/o~J.k.J~ /Lc.JrC7J£Jj)¥'J! r11J.b4t5ft-1.[1 

~.Ju~,~1\)'-1,)'~~/~l-1(0,f7~1}-11~;-'..tJ.rt~/L1,£-1~1JJP{v}~Jv!J-(i 
-Yi~-1y#if-r.~1.f cJ-v~L-11;;v?-

-~,.f e-cf..A.1.t((LhJYJ1tJf7~rfJ!~-';11~/.;;?;1JLL1,hJYJ1fJ 

c.I ~~-1jL...{,}f11J! r11J)4tJl#i~i.:)! J'--1111/J{ ~,J. UvL242~L<"d1")2011 drf.:[ 

1~.tj "":"'p--1"' ~v":"' J J{,17 i)1f ~;-1.il.Yi ~ /(IJL":-1i;,-J:.-'~-''1,1J.,J_7 V~1-11jJ; v ":"'' 
/Lr,£-1..t..tJy;?-.::JL(CDS)(uJ;~jJfr-V.:.l('1)~k6)4t5¥'~»'i-Jv!"(-1G~k6 

-~'./ 6v~ LU'J/~~ (,Y..ir(fu 5!,f /~; »~r-1D1/.~~,!PJ~k6~,,f 7~r?-11L.i-1.il11~ 
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.Q.~,~ 
FOCUSED ON SOLUTIONS 

J.jC,)1e{L1/,p.)/;}f'f-~1})1~;)lJJ1~/;:.fa;1}Ld)rJ!"'1iJrlJ.llPL"'11 

-~1f('1j~!{ 4a(;1(~1lPi1L"'1iJr'{company.secretary@orientmodaraba.com i:.-L~ 

-=.~01 ~1~J;~~ /.J:' .)-:,;} 1(1CDC/ ,d} CNIC (t~JJYt~/ 

v,?{J:J1j/vJJ'1frvL~JJ! 1rJ;;.ti1r-L;)lJJ1_r;~,J1i:.-L)YJ~rJv)Jli:.-~JJJfrt~J 
_JJ! 1rJ1J.r'y~~J 

'-!)~f(~~iJ .r 

/-:A .. vJ<;-J) 1.20)~12~LJl,.-JLL1JLJ1°(/ 2024~?.30L;/(JrjJfj)i.LJi' ~-:)L-V 
'f-Jr./ ~6~ '( J NTN~CNIC~J1:;-r-.f'Jf1L rJ?.JJlJYi~ /-'f-J11..-1J);:>J tiv-;;L(~ 
~CNIC~J1-J!r./6/~)!7-.1_r;coc;/-.1!}-?)_r;L-:.1r.P{.1}J)}~1uf 'f-jlrJ~1}.1J~~1 

L.:CJ))~tj(;.1JJJ1~ /41dL243(3)~L2011 ~,j.f 4)L-V,rJ!i:.-),.,s.a.~~'S NTN 

_(L~Lf_v.~d._ 
•.. T .. 

Jk.~/.j)f}~/-~ 
Jf)~)J,.r.cJr1J~)J_Jvi)_v.c1~,(,,);J)J,fa.)2024..1.;rl2st-2024..1.;rl1aJ.r1J~/S-:.1L-V 
~1./ J":! t,,)~~ cSMCHS,"B" J~ c99-8"'1J~ i.SJ j IJ'jJ.1vL~)!7-) ,;.;IJ'iJ j i,J'J/-J!}-?.1L-:.1L-V 

L i:.-~J' J)~J.1(/,.2024..1.;rl 17 ,.:hY°I 021-34326053,/.~,021-111-111-soo ,/.~.£ 74400 

_t:_(,,)J1.1_,;i~J/.¥d/rJ!"'11Jrlof(r~!J!r-JJl..::.JtJ)~!j,L_(,,)J1J.r'Y°~(~I 
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.Q.~,~ 
FOCUSED ON SOLUTIONS 

fif 2024.1.;rj 25~.1.Y\./JJrfo'l!,.;JJv(LJjJ 7)L)riv (;)JJYt.:.Jij /L~.1i.;,.~~.1Jlf 7 t"! V'&vj~~.1_;. 

L.1.1.J;.hrS~.1i.;,..JJ,,J1~r,.1.~j;;~,,J.;-.}1Jt24fig.J.~~,J,,9~t1JjJJJ-vL~)i.;,.~ 10:00 

_JL1vJ~811v2024~.r.3o?Jv . .. . 
J. . .J •f..:.0 
)).;., ......... ~ . . 

Jr.srJLz..I 

oJ--fuf 

~PLJ!~ju {a 

-LLJYlJ1L4v!vJJrj,.; VvoJ,LLJYlJ?..t'\.t y..1£ 2024.1.;rj 11 rtL1.1JJJ1.:.Ji! /i:f.L~.1i.;,. 

Y'H"CNIC"p.1 ( J~tJ h11J.d'J1~1¥ J.~Si.:.->~~l~JL~LJ!vilr''L)! ~.1Y'O.»IJJj (i 

_ (J1tt!PG~.1J;""~ ., 

~~JLvJJrl(.1 ~ Lii{ (li-(J1t!PGCNIC~j"f/Lll{¥ J. ..;;s~~~ f,i.)!~.1Y'OLJ1Lli{o.;;:'IJ (ii 

-LLJYl L1.I 6~.1}tJ; vi.)! jJV··VL~A,..,~~ 4sf;1f 

io::;JLvJJrj~.1 ~u1f/ .1J113'JLL,J(j J.1e11. .. f0J ~ hlJ)rjJ';}fJjjJ n)J.cr..t~.1Y'J'LJ10.1IJl~.1i )( (iii ,. ., 'I ., 

-LLJYl L1.I e~)}tJ; vi.)! j)j y.)L~)i.;,.~~ 4sf;1f ~ 
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Proxy Form Orient Rental Modaraba 
Managed by: EMAN Management (Private) 
Limited 

being a member of Orient Rental Modaraba and holder of ____________ Certificates as per Certificate 

Register Folio No. _____ and I or CDC Participant ID No. ________ and Sub Account No. ___ _ 

hereby appoint ____________________________________ _ 

of ______________ orfailinghim/herof ___________________ _ 

As my proxy to represent me and on my behalf at the 7th Annual Review Meeting of the Modaraba to be held on 25th day of 
October 2024 and at any adjournment there ot: 

Signed this _______ day of ______ 2024 

WITNESSES: 

1 Signature: __________ _ 

Name: ___________ _ 
Address: ___________ _ 

CNIC I or: __________ _ 

Passport No.: _________ _ 

2 Signature: __________ _ 

Name: ___________ _ 

Address:. ___________ _ 

CNIC I or: __________ _ 

Passport No.:----------

Signature 
Revenue 
St.amp 
Rs.5 /-

(Signature should agree with specimen 
signature registered with the Modaraba) 

Note: Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Modaraba not less than 48 hours before the meeting. 
A proxy must be a certificate holder of the Modaraba. CDC Certificate holders and their proxies are each requested 
to submit attested photocopy of their Computerized National Identity Card or Passport with this proxy form. 
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Key features: 
1iiJ Licensed Entities Verification 

~ Scam meter* 

""' Jamapunji games* 

ii Tax credit calculator* 

• Company Verification 

[II Insurance & Investment Checklist 

171 FAQs Answered 

J;ima Punji IS an Investor 
Education Initiative of 
Sccuntcs and Exchange 
Corrvnission of Pakistan 

-

EI Ja111a 
Punji 

~L....C...tS,)l~tS,)ts° <lnL...>-> 

Be aware, Be alert, 
Be safe 
Learn about investing at 
www.jamapunji.pk 

~ Stock trading simulator 
(based on live feed from KSE) 

Knowledge center 

Risk profiler* 

Financial calculator 

Subscription to Alerts (event 
notifications, corporate and 
regulatory actions) 

!;I Jamapunji application for 
mobile device 

~ Online Quizzes 

IJ 
jamapunji.pk 

,, 
@jamapunji_pk 

·Mobile apps are also available for download f0< android and ios devices 
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